
From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO LAUNCHES NEW CAMPAIGN TO UNITE COMMUNITIES AGAINST

DISCRIMINATION
Date: Tuesday, October 20, 2020 5:17:24 PM
Attachments: 10.20.20 Stand Together Campaign.pdf

 
 
Jonas P Ionin
Director of Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7589 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map
 
 

From: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Date: Tuesday, October 20, 2020 at 5:16 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO LAUNCHES NEW CAMPAIGN
TO UNITE COMMUNITIES AGAINST DISCRIMINATION
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, October 20, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO LAUNCHES NEW CAMPAIGN TO UNITE

COMMUNITIES AGAINST DISCRIMINATION
The Stand Together campaign is focused on uniting San Franciscans against discrimination

and bias, and includes a series of monthly Town Hall events
 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced the launch of the Stand
Together campaign to denounce and combat discrimination in San Francisco. The campaign,
organized by the San Francisco Human Rights Commission and community leaders, began
today with a Town Hall about anti-Asian discrimination. Over the coming months, the City
and community will host a series of public Town Halls with community leaders to work
collectively to address bias and discrimination. The Stand Together campaign will also include
community inspired artwork and youth-led projects that will attempt to repair community
relationships that have become especially strained during the COVID-19 pandemic.
 
“San Francisco strives to be a city that celebrates all of its diverse communities, but we know
that racism and discrimination persist, and have been heightened due to COVID-19,” said
Mayor Breed. “It’s important that we talk about what we can do to support each other, and that
we don’t shy away from calling out racism and having hard conversations. We need to send a
strong signal that San Francisco will not tolerate racial discrimination and that we will stand
together to oppose hate. This will take concentrated work to keep up this momentum, and our
Stand Together Town Halls and campaign gives us a platform to work together and create a
more just and equitable city.”
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
The Stand Together campaign is focused on uniting San Franciscans against discrimination and 


bias, and includes a series of monthly Town Hall events 
 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced the launch of the Stand 
Together campaign to denounce and combat discrimination in San Francisco. The campaign, 
organized by the San Francisco Human Rights Commission and community leaders, began today 
with a Town Hall about anti-Asian discrimination. Over the coming months, the City and 
community will host a series of public Town Halls with community leaders to work collectively 
to address bias and discrimination. The Stand Together campaign will also include community 
inspired artwork and youth-led projects that will attempt to repair community relationships that 
have become especially strained during the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
“San Francisco strives to be a city that celebrates all of its diverse communities, but we know 
that racism and discrimination persist, and have been heightened due to COVID-19,” said Mayor 
Breed. “It’s important that we talk about what we can do to support each other, and that we don’t 
shy away from calling out racism and having hard conversations. We need to send a strong 
signal that San Francisco will not tolerate racial discrimination and that we will stand together to 
oppose hate. This will take concentrated work to keep up this momentum, and our Stand 
Together Town Halls and campaign gives us a platform to work together and create a more just 
and equitable city.” 
 
“The health and social disparities exploited by COVID will only expand if we do not stand 
together,” said Sheryl Davis, Executive Director, Human Rights Commission. “Our liberation is 
linked. If we are going to address the many pandemics happening at this moment, we have to be 
united in our fight!” 
 
The Stand Together campaign and monthly Town Hall series is designed to address racism 
against communities of color and the need for cross-cultural relationship building. Since the 
onset of the COVID-19 pandemic, xenophobic and racist remarks and actions have resulted in 
the increase in anti-Asian hate incidents nationally, including in San Francisco. According to 
Chinese for Affirmative Action, a co-founder of Stop AAPI Hate, a national coalition aimed at 
addressing anti-Asian discrimination amid the pandemic, there are over 2,700 reported incidents 
coming from throughout the nation since the beginning of the COVID-19 pandemic. California 
represents 43% of incidents or 1,186 of the total accounts, and San Francisco has 282 or roughly 
24% of all California reported incidents. 
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The purpose of today’s kickoff event, Stand Together: Uniting Against Discrimination and Bias, 
was to raise visibility regarding the increase of anti-Asian discrimination and racism as an 
outcome of the COVID-19 pandemic. The Town Hall elevated stories from San Francisco’s 
Asian and African American communities that demonstrate their shared struggles and successful 
allyship in the past, discuss the ways that their communities have been pitted against each other 
and why, and emphasize that collective liberation depends on standing together. 
 
The virtual event had a diverse panel of representatives from the City’s Asian and Black 
communities, which discussed ways to bring together communities of color to oppose and reduce 
anti-Asian racism. The conversation also focused on how to increase the feeling of safety in 
Asian communities, and expand anti-racist work within Asian communities to support other 
communities of color, with an emphasis on San Francisco’s Black community. 
 
Mayor Breed provided opening remarks at the event, which was moderated by Michelle Meow, a 
local radio and television personality and leading voice in the San Francisco Bay Area for the 
Asian-American and LGBTQ communities. Other panelists included Eddy Zheng, President and 
Founder of the New Breath Foundation; Jon Osaki, the Executive Director of the Japanese 
Community Youth Council; Monetta White, Executive Director of the Museum of the African 
Diaspora, and prominent community leaders Reverend Arnold Townsend and Reverend Norman 
Fong. 
 
“As we continue to address catastrophic global public health and national security crises, San 
Francisco will continue to lead and stand united with and protect our Asian and Black 
communities from both viruses: SARS-CoV-2 and hate,” said Hala Hijazi, San Francisco Human 
Rights Commissioner. “The pandemic continues to unleash a tsunami of hate and scapegoating. 
Increases in racist rhetoric have resulted in increases in racist attacks. We are taking urgent steps 
to prevent racist and xenophobic discrimination and violence linked to the COVID19 pandemic 
against our brothers and sisters in the Asian community. Today’s forum is one of the efforts to 
expand public outreach, promote tolerance, and counter hate speech.”’ 
 
“I am delighted that the Human Rights Commission has convened this town hall to address the 
impact of anti-Asian discrimination and hate on the Asian Pacific American community,” said 
Irene Yee Riley, Human Rights Commissioner. “It is imperative to have a timely conversation 
about how communities of color can build alliance and support each other.” 
 
In addition to the Town Hall events, the Stand Together campaign includes school workshops, 
youth internships and virtual events to highlight social justice, cultural identities, and examples 
of community unity. 
 
For more information about the Stand Together campaign, including upcoming Town Hall 
events, go to StandTogetherSF.org. 
 


### 
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“The health and social disparities exploited by COVID will only expand if we do not stand
together,” said Sheryl Davis, Executive Director, Human Rights Commission. “Our liberation
is linked. If we are going to address the many pandemics happening at this moment, we have
to be united in our fight!”
 
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
addressing anti-Asian discrimination amid the pandemic, there are over 2,700 reported
incidents coming from throughout the nation since the beginning of the COVID-19 pandemic.
California represents 43% of incidents or 1,186 of the total accounts, and San Francisco has
282 or roughly 24% of all California reported incidents.
 
The purpose of today’s kickoff event, Stand Together: Uniting Against Discrimination and
Bias, was to raise visibility regarding the increase of anti-Asian discrimination and racism as
an outcome of the COVID-19 pandemic. The Town Hall elevated stories from San Francisco’s
Asian and African American communities that demonstrate their shared struggles and
successful allyship in the past, discuss the ways that their communities have been pitted
against each other and why, and emphasize that collective liberation depends on standing
together.
 
The virtual event had a diverse panel of representatives from the City’s Asian and Black
communities, which discussed ways to bring together communities of color to oppose and
reduce anti-Asian racism. The conversation also focused on how to increase the feeling of
safety in Asian communities, and expand anti-racist work within Asian communities to
support other communities of color, with an emphasis on San Francisco’s Black community.
 
Mayor Breed provided opening remarks at the event, which was moderated by Michelle
Meow, a local radio and television personality and leading voice in the San Francisco Bay
Area for the Asian-American and LGBTQ communities. Other panelists included Eddy
Zheng, President and Founder of the New Breath Foundation; Jon Osaki, the Executive
Director of the Japanese Community Youth Council; Monetta White, Executive Director of
the Museum of the African Diaspora, and prominent community leaders Reverend Arnold
Townsend and Reverend Norman Fong.
 
“As we continue to address catastrophic global public health and national security crises, San
Francisco will continue to lead and stand united with and protect our Asian and Black
communities from both viruses: SARS-CoV-2 and hate,” said Hala Hijazi, San Francisco
Human Rights Commissioner. “The pandemic continues to unleash a tsunami of hate and
scapegoating. Increases in racist rhetoric have resulted in increases in racist attacks. We are
taking urgent steps to prevent racist and xenophobic discrimination and violence linked to the
COVID19 pandemic against our brothers and sisters in the Asian community. Today’s forum
is one of the efforts to expand public outreach, promote tolerance, and counter hate speech.”’
 
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
youth internships and virtual events to highlight social justice, cultural identities, and
examples of community unity.
 
For more information about the Stand Together campaign, including upcoming Town Hall
events, go to StandTogetherSF.org.
 

###
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Gordon-Jonckheer, Elizabeth (CPC); Boudreaux, Marcelle (CPC); Watty, Elizabeth

(CPC); Sucre, Richard (CPC)
Subject: Preservation Division of Duties
Date: Tuesday, October 20, 2020 5:16:53 PM
Attachments: Preservation Management - Division of Duties_10.01.20 (2).pdf

Commissioners,
In advance of your hearing tomorrow, we are providing you with the Departemnt’s Division of Duties
of your Preservation staff.
 
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
Preservation Management Division of Duties 


10.01.20 


 
 


   
 


PRESERVATION MANAGEMENT CONTACT INFO 
Elizabeth Watty – elizabeth.watty@sfgov.org 628-652-7362 
Marcelle Boudreaux – Marcelle.Boudreaux@sfgov.org 628-652-7375 
Elizabeth Gordon-Jonckheer - elizabeth.gordon-jonckheer@sfgov.org 628-652-7365 
Rich Sucre – Richard.Sucre@sfgov.org 628-652-7364 
Allison Vanderslice - allison.vanderslice@sfgov.org 628-652-7505 
 
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW (BUILDING PERMITS, COA/PTA’S, PRESERVATION USE INCENTIVES, ETC.)  


Supervisors: Elizabeth Gordon-Jonckheer (Northeast & Northwest Teams) & Rich Sucre (Southeast 
and Southwest Teams) 


• Lead Planners: Quadrant Preservation Technical Specialist 


• Reporting: Annual CLG Report 
 


CEQA, NEPA, SECTION 106 & TRIBAL CULTURAL PRESERVATION  
Supervisor: Allison Vanderslice 


• Lead Planners: Environmental Preservation Planners and Quadrant Preservation Technical 
Specialists  


• Reporting: Annual CLG Report  
 
LEGACY BUSINESS PROGRAM 


Supervisor: Marcelle Boudreaux 


• Lead Planner: Katie Wilborn 


• Reporting: Potential Quarterly Updates; Annual Report by Office of Small Business 
 
LANDMARK DESIGNATION PROGRAM  


Supervisor: Marcelle Boudreaux 


• Lead Planners: Survey & Designation Team 


• Reporting: Annual CLG Report 
 
Mills Act 


Supervisor: Elizabeth Gordon-Jonckheer 


• Lead Planner: Michelle Taylor 


• Reporting: Annual report concurrent with HPC’s Mills Act review cycle 
 
CITYWIDE SURVEY PROGRAM  


Supervisor: Marcelle Boudreaux 


• Lead Planner: Susan Parks 


• Reporting: Quarterly updates 
 
 CULTURAL DISTRICTS 


Supervisor: Maia Small (Community Equity Division) 


• Lead Planner: Shelley Caltagirone & Alex Westhoff 


• Reporting: Potential Quarterly Updates; Annual Report by MOHCD 
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); LaValley, Pilar (CPC)
Subject: FW: UCSF Hires Conservation Firm to Move the Zakheim Murals
Date: Tuesday, October 20, 2020 3:23:31 PM
Attachments: image001.png

2020-10-20 - UCSF Hires Conservation Firm to Move Zakheim Murals.pdf

 
 
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
 
 

From: "Alden, Amiee A" <Amiee.Alden@ucsf.edu>
Date: Tuesday, October 20, 2020 at 3:22 PM
To: "Alden, Amiee (UCSF)" <Amiee.Alden@ucsf.edu>
Cc: "Vega, Francesca (UCSF)" <Francesca.Vega@ucsf.edu>, "Takayama (UCSF)"
<Paul.Takayama@ucsf.edu>
Subject: UCSF Hires Conservation Firm to Move the Zakheim Murals
 

 

Colleagues,
On behalf of Vice Chancellor Francesca Vega, UCSF is pleased to announce that we have hired the
firm of ARG Conservation Services, a San Francisco-based historic preservation firm, to relocate the
10 “History of Medicine in California” murals by Bernard Zakheim from a seismically vulnerable
building on our campus.  Once the murals are safely moved, the University will evaluate the best
location to reinstall them so they can be appreciated by scholars and the public for years to come.
 
As you know, the Planning Department has introduced an ordinance at the Board of Supervisors to
landmark the murals, which is pending in the Land Use Committee.
 
Please see the attached press release for additional details, and do not hesitate to contact me with
any questions.  - Amiee
 
 
Amiee Alden, MPP
Director, Local and State Government Relations
 
University of California, San Francisco
3333 California Street, Suite 103 | San Francisco, CA 94118
Phone:  415-476-8433 | Mobile:  510-207-0628

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
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http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/







 


 


 


 


 


 


October 20, 2020 


 


UCSF Hires Conservation Firm to Move Zakheim Murals from Seismically Vulnerable 


Building 


University Will Seek New Home for Historic Frescoes Following their Safe Removal 


 


UC San Francisco has selected a historic preservation firm for the delicate task of relocating 


a series of 10 New Deal–era murals from a seismically vulnerable building on UCSF’s 


Parnassus campus.  


 


The History of Medicine in California murals were painted in fresco style by Polish-born 


artist Bernard Zakheim in the late 1930s on the plaster walls of Toland Hall auditorium, 


which is located in a 103-year-old building that must soon be replaced with a new facility 


that meets state and University of California seismic codes.  


 


Safely moving the large, mostly curved murals, which are brittle and in some cases have 


suffered prior water damage, is expected to be a challenging task. Assuming the murals are 


moved successfully, the university will seek a permanent home for the collection where they 


will be available for public viewing. 


 


The university selected ARG Conservation Services (ARG/CS), a San Francisco–based 


general contracting conservation firm specializing in historic preservation, to conduct the 


work, in a formal bidding process. ARG/CS is affiliated with the Architectural Resources 


Group (ARG), which will serve as the architect of record for the project.  
 


The team brings together exceptional talent and experience in the preservation and transport 


of historic artworks, and will be led by project manager Jennifer Correia, an architectural 


conservator with 15 years of experience who previously managed the conservation and 


waterproofing of Coit Tower’s New Deal fresco murals, including other murals by Bernard 


Zakheim. Other leading members of the project team include local experts in conservation 


architecture and the safe transport of fine art who have been involved in mural restoration at 


Beach Chalet, the ongoing restoration of the San Francisco Ferry Building, and the 


upcoming move of a Diego Rivera mural from City College of San Francisco to the San 


Francisco Museum of Modern Art (SFMOMA).   


 


“We are very pleased with ARG/CS’s meticulous proposal and the cohesive team of 


contractors, architects, art movers, and other experts they have assembled,” said Brian 


Newman, UCSF Senior Associate Vice Chancellor Real Estate. “Their extensive experience 


working with one another on projects involving conservation and transportation of murals 


and other delicate works of art gives us confidence in their ability to successfully execute 


this important project.”  


  


“ARG has done this kind of thing so many times, they would be my first choice for this kind 


of work,” concurred Armen Tajirian, P.E., Ph.D., principal at Applied Materials & 


Engineering, Inc. (AME) an independent Construction Materials Consulting, Inspection and 


Testing firm based in Oakland who has worked with ARG/CS frequently for decades. “They 


are singularly well qualified because they combine the roles of architect and general 


contractor, so they can not only specify the optimal design but also carry out the work 


themselves at a very high standard. They’re good people who know what they’re doing when 


it comes to historic architecture and historic buildings.” 


 







Once the murals are safely moved, the University will evaluate the best location to reinstall them so they can be 


appreciated by scholars and the public for years to come.  


 


"The family of Biddy Mason is elated that UCSF has hired a prestigious firm to preserve and move the historic 


murals featuring our grandmother,” said Cheryl Cox, the great-great-great-great granddaughter of Biddy Mason, a 


former slave who rose to become a pioneering midwife, entrepreneur and philanthropist in Los Angeles and is 


depicted in the murals as a medical authority. Cox is president of the Biddy Mason Foundation™, which carries on 


Mason’s legacy through charitable works in the US and abroad.  


 


“We wish the preservation project great success and that in the very near future our family will be able to view The 


History of Medicine in California, in a new location," said Cox, who, with her sister Robynn Cox, PhD, recently 


participated in an interview with UCSF about their remarkable ancestor and her portrayal in the Zakheim murals. 


 


In advance of moving the murals, the University has partnered with Cyark, a nonprofit company dedicated to 


preserving and sharing the world’s most important cultural heritage, to create high resolution 3D images of the 


murals in their original context in Toland Hall. The UCSF Library and Archives is developing a virtual reality 


experience about the murals and their history to be hosted online and in an interpretive exhibit on campus in order to 


make them accessible to the widest possible audience.  


 


 



https://www.ucsf.edu/news/2020/09/418616/open-hand-conversation-descendants-biddy-mason





Email:  amiee.alden@ucsf.edu
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO CONTINUES REOPENING WITH EXPANDED BUSINESS

OPERATIONS AND ACTIVITIES
Date: Tuesday, October 20, 2020 2:01:45 PM
Attachments: 10.20.20 Reopening Update_COVID-19.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Tuesday, October 20, 2020 at 11:53 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO CONTINUES REOPENING WITH
EXPANDED BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND ACTIVITIES
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, October 20, 2020
Contact: San Francisco Joint Information Center, dempress@sfgov.org 
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO CONTINUES REOPENING WITH

EXPANDED BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND ACTIVITIES
Now that San Francisco is assigned to the State’s Yellow tier, the City will move forward on

reopening offices and expanding capacity at business, including fitness, dining, places of
worship, personal services, recreation, and more

 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Director of Public Health Dr. Grant
Colfax today announced San Francisco is continuing its measured reopening of the economy.
Beginning Tuesday, October 27, the City will reopen “non-essential” offices at limited
capacity. San Francisco will also reopen indoor climbing walls and will move forward on
expanding other businesses and activities. In addition, San Francisco updated its timeline for
opening additional activities over the coming weeks.
 
These next steps come as the State assigned San Francisco to Yellow on its tiered reopening
system, based on San Francisco’s COVID-19 case and infection rates and equity metric. Since
the State introduced the tiered system on August 28th, San Francisco has had a deliberate
approach to reopening that has resulted in San Francisco being the only county in the Bay
Area placed in the Yellow tier and the only urban area to be at Yellow.
 
“San Franciscans have taken COVID-19 seriously from the very beginning, and thanks to
everyone’s commitment to wearing face coverings and following public health guidance, we
are able to keep moving forward with reopening. Today really is a sign of hope for our city
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


 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Director of Public Health Dr. Grant Colfax 
today announced San Francisco is continuing its measured reopening of the economy. Beginning 
Tuesday, October 27, the City will reopen “non-essential” offices at limited capacity. 
San Francisco will also reopen indoor climbing walls and will move forward on expanding other 
businesses and activities. In addition, San Francisco updated its timeline for opening additional 
activities over the coming weeks.  
 
These next steps come as the State assigned San Francisco to Yellow on its tiered reopening 
system, based on San Francisco’s COVID-19 case and infection rates and equity metric. Since 
the State introduced the tiered system on August 28th, San Francisco has had a deliberate 
approach to reopening that has resulted in San Francisco being the only county in the Bay Area 
placed in the Yellow tier and the only urban area to be at Yellow. 
 
“San Franciscans have taken COVID-19 seriously from the very beginning, and thanks to 
everyone’s commitment to wearing face coverings and following public health guidance, we are 
able to keep moving forward with reopening. Today really is a sign of hope for our city and for 
our economic recovery,” said Mayor Breed. “Every step of the way we’ve made decisions 
through the lens of public health, and we will continue to do so going forward. We know new 
cases of COVID are rising in other parts of the country, so we cannot relax. We must remain 
vigilant. But I have faith in the people of San Francisco and in our approach to this virus. It 
won’t be easy and there are still tough months ahead, but I’m proud of the way this City has 
come together to fight this virus.” 
   
“Working together, we have slowed the spread of COVID-19 in San Francisco. Our residents 
have been tremendous partners and have taken the necessary precautions. We have had robust 
partnerships across the City and the infrastructure that we have built in our COVID-19 response 
has been critical to beating back the virus,” said Dr. Grant Colfax, Director of Health. “We will 
continue to monitor our health indicators and impacts of reopening, which will help guide us in 
future planning.”  
 
San Francisco’s deliberate and measured reopening has resulted in San Francisco steadily 
reducing the rate of infection that has resulted in Yellow tier status. As such, on Tuesday, 
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October 27th the San Francisco Department of Public Health will issue final health and safety 
guidelines to reopen non-essential offices at limited capacity and with specific requirements. 
Indoor climbing gyms will also be able to resume with the same capacity as fitness centers, and 
personal services can allow limited mask removal for services such as those provided by 
estheticians. Additionally, fitness centers and institutes of higher education will be able to 
increase capacity. 
 
San Francisco has also set a timeline for opening new activities and expanding previously 
reopened businesses and activities over the following weeks. San Francisco expects to reopen 
indoor pools and bowling alleys, with required safety protocols, on November 3rd. Additionally, 
the City plans to increase capacity allowances to 50% for indoor dining, places of worship, 
theaters, museums, zoos, and aquariums. Schools will continue to reopen and some high schools 
are on track to return to in-person learning in November.  
 
“We’re making great progress towards San Francisco’s economic recovery because of the hard 
work of residents and businesses alike,” said Joaquín Torres Director of the Office of Economic 
and Workforce Development. “Through our measured and thoughtful approach, we’ll continue 
to reopen safely and see the positive cultural and economic impacts necessary for our city to 
thrive. We look forward to expanding more activity for businesses especially as we prepare and 
head into the holiday season.” 
 
“San Francisco has once again led the state with our deliberate yet collaborative approach to safe 
re-opening. Over the last few months, the Economic Recovery Task Force has worked hard 
with industry leaders to plan a path forward,” said Assessor Carmen Chu, Co-Chair of Economic 
Recovery Task Force. “Today, we are witnessing the great results of teamwork and cooperation 
from everybody. As a dense city, getting to yellow is a huge accomplishment, I am excited to see 
more businesses come back and let’s keep it going!” 
 
San Franciscans’ commitment to preventative measures such as wearing face coverings, social 
distancing, hand washing, and avoiding gatherings has placed San Francisco in the unique 
position of effectively managing the virus as the nation faces a third wave of outbreaks. 
Additionally, San Francisco’s COVID-19 response infrastructure that includes testing, contact 
tracing, and support services have been key to the City’s successful management of the virus to 
date. 
 
The reopening of businesses and activities will increase travel and interaction throughout the 
city, which risks increasing community spread of the virus and an increase in cases. Public health 
officials will regularly assess the Key Public Health Indicators, particularly new positive case 
counts and hospitalizations to ensure San Francisco has the necessary resources available for 
those who contract COVID-19. The phasing of additional activities is structured to maximize the 
City’s ability to track these local health indicators and ensure that San Francisco continues to 
manage its risk and to protect public health. 
  
While San Francisco recognizes the State’s thresholds, the City will continue on a reopening 
path based on its local health indicators and unique challenges and successes of our local 
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reopening. Reopening is dependent upon San Francisco’s Key Public Health Indicators 
remaining stable or improving, and the plan is subject to change. Following the reopening 
activities below, and pursuant to the health indicators remaining stable or improving, San 
Francisco will assess the possibility of further expanding office, retail, and other lower-risk 
activities.  
 
San Francisco’s reopening plan is outlined below and is available online at sf.gov/reopening. All 
sectors that will be reopened or expanded should check San Francisco’s Reopening page for 
updated requirements and guidelines that pertain to them. 
 
Non-essential Offices 
Starting on Tuesday, October 27th, non-essential offices can reopen at 25% capacity. Offices 
with fewer than 20 employees can reopen beyond 25%, to the extent that space allows employees 
to maintain social distancing. Specific ventilation guidelines must be met to the greatest extent 
possible. Under the new health guidance, employers must conduct a health check of employees 
each day that they report to the office. If San Francisco’s case rates remain stable or continue to 
improve for at least 30 days following reopening on October 27, the City will consider further 
expanding office capacity to 50%. 
 
Climbing Gyms 
Starting on Tuesday, October 27th, indoor climbing gyms and climbing walls within fitness 
centers can reopen at 25% capacity with specific sanitation and staffing protocols in place. All 
individuals must wear face coverings at all times.  
 
Expanded Activities Resuming October 27th 
In addition to non-essential offices and climbing gyms, San Francisco is moving forward on 
expanding the following activities on Tuesday, October 27th: 


• Indoor fitness centers can increase their indoor capacity to 25%, without cardio or aerobic 
classes. 


• Some indoor personal services that require limited face covering removal including 
services provided by estheticians, waxing, and skin treatments. 


• Institutes of higher education can increase capacity of outdoor classes to 25 people 
(including instructors) and can request an exception to the 2-hour limit on indoor classes. 


 
New Activities on November 3rd  


• Indoor pools. 
• Indoor bowling alleys. 
• Indoor fitness centers, including those in hotels, can open their locker rooms and 


showers. 
 
Expanded Activities on November 3rd 


• Dining establishments, including those within hotels, shopping centers and museums, can 
increase their indoor capacity to 50% up to 200 people, and with a maximum time limit 
per table seating of 3 hours. 



https://sf.gov/reopening
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• Indoor worship can expand their capacity to 50%, up to 200 people. 
• Outdoor worship or political protests can expand to 300 people, with face coverings and 


distancing. 
• Indoor museums, zoos, and aquariums can increase their capacity to 50%. 
• Movie theaters can increase their capacity to 50% up to 200 people, without food or 


beverage concessions. 
• Allow some types of live performances with up to six performers to take place in a drive-


in setting. 
• Film productions can expand indoor activities and allow for removal of face coverings 


under specific guidelines and can expand outdoor activities to up to 50 people. 
 
GOAL: mid-November 


• Bars not serving food can re-open for outdoor operations, with specific health and safety 
protocols that will be forthcoming. 


 
Reopening of Schools - Ongoing 
As state and local COVID-19 indicators permit, San Francisco schools may now resume in-
person learning with approved safety plans in place. San Francisco’s approach to the reopening 
process for San Francisco TK-12 schools (transitional kindergarten through 12th grade) 
prioritizes the reopening of younger grades for in-person learning. As many as 114 private, 
parochial or charters schools have requested applications for in-person learning this fall. Almost 
92 schools have submitted applications and 56 schools have been approved for reopening. The 
applications are being reviewed on a rolling basis. 
  
All San Francisco schools must meet minimum standards required by the state and DPH before 
resuming in-person learning. This includes providing detailed plans on how they will ensure 
adequate testing and contact tracing for their staff and students. Schools will work with DPH to 
meet all the requirements for the safest reopening. The school reopening dashboard identifies the 
schools that have begun this process by sending an initial letter of interest to DPH to reopen, and 
shows where each school is in the approval process, including completion of an on-site 
assessment. 
 
Although additional indoor activities are being allowed, it is important to remember that 
generally outdoor options remain safer because the COVID-19 virus travels in the air and 
collects indoors. Older adults and those with COVID-19 risk factors should avoid indoor crowds. 
All San Franciscans must do their part to limit the spread of COVID-19, including face 
coverings, social distancing, hand washing, and avoiding gatherings. 
 
 


### 
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and for our economic recovery,” said Mayor Breed. “Every step of the way we’ve made
decisions through the lens of public health, and we will continue to do so going forward. We
know new cases of COVID are rising in other parts of the country, so we cannot relax. We
must remain vigilant. But I have faith in the people of San Francisco and in our approach
to this virus. It won’t be easy and there are still tough months ahead, but I’m proud of the way
this City has come together to fight this virus.”
 
“Working together, we have slowed the spread of COVID-19 in San Francisco. Our residents
have been tremendous partners and have taken the necessary precautions. We have had robust
partnerships across the City and the infrastructure that we have built in our COVID-19
response has been critical to beating back the virus,” said Dr. Grant Colfax, Director of
Health. “We will continue to monitor our health indicators and impacts of reopening, which
will help guide us in future planning.” 
 
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
Indoor climbing gyms will also be able to resume with the same capacity as fitness centers,
and personal services can allow limited mask removal for services such as those provided by
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
indoor pools and bowling alleys, with required safety protocols, on November 3rd.
Additionally, the City plans to increase capacity allowances to 50% for indoor dining, places
of worship, theaters, museums, zoos, and aquariums. Schools will continue to reopen and
some high schools are on track to return to in-person learning in November.
 
“We’re making great progress towards San Francisco’s economic recovery because of the hard
work of residents and businesses alike,” said Joaquín Torres Director of the Office of
Economic and Workforce Development. “Through our measured and thoughtful approach,
we’ll continue to reopen safely and see the positive cultural and economic impacts necessary
for our city to thrive. We look forward to expanding more activity for businesses especially as
we prepare and head into the holiday season.”
 
“San Francisco has once again led the state with our deliberate yet collaborative approach to
safe re-opening. Over the last few months, the Economic Recovery Task Force has worked
hard with industry leaders to plan a path forward,” said Assessor Carmen Chu, Co-Chair of
Economic Recovery Task Force. “Today, we are witnessing the great results of teamwork and
cooperation from everybody. As a dense city, getting to yellow is a huge accomplishment, I
am excited to see more businesses come back and let’s keep it going!”
 
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
tracing, and support services have been key to the City’s successful management of the virus
to date.



 
The reopening of businesses and activities will increase travel and interaction throughout the
city, which risks increasing community spread of the virus and an increase in cases. Public
health officials will regularly assess the Key Public Health Indicators, particularly new
positive case counts and hospitalizations to ensure San Francisco has the necessary resources
available for those who contract COVID-19. The phasing of additional activities is structured
to maximize the City’s ability to track these local health indicators and ensure that San
Francisco continues to manage its risk and to protect public health.
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
 
San Francisco’s reopening plan is outlined below and is available online at sf.gov/reopening.
All sectors that will be reopened or expanded should check San Francisco’s Reopening page
for updated requirements and guidelines that pertain to them.
 
Non-essential Offices
Starting on Tuesday, October 27th, non-essential offices can reopen at 25% capacity. Offices
with fewer than 20 employees can reopen beyond 25%, to the extent that space allows
employees to maintain social distancing. Specific ventilation guidelines must be met to the
greatest extent possible. Under the new health guidance, employers must conduct a health
check of employees each day that they report to the office. If San Francisco’s case rates
remain stable or continue to improve for at least 30 days following reopening on October 27,
the City will consider further expanding office capacity to 50%.
 
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

Indoor fitness centers can increase their indoor capacity to 25%, without cardio or
aerobic classes.
Some indoor personal services that require limited face covering removal including
services provided by estheticians, waxing, and skin treatments.
Institutes of higher education can increase capacity of outdoor classes to 25 people
(including instructors) and can request an exception to the 2-hour limit on indoor
classes.

 
New Activities on November 3rd

Indoor pools.
Indoor bowling alleys.
Indoor fitness centers, including those in hotels, can open their locker rooms and

https://data.sfgov.org/stories/s/epem-wyzb
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showers.
 
Expanded Activities on November 3rd

Dining establishments, including those within hotels, shopping centers and museums,
can increase their indoor capacity to 50% up to 200 people, and with a maximum time
limit per table seating of 3 hours.
Indoor worship can expand their capacity to 50%, up to 200 people.
Outdoor worship or political protests can expand to 300 people, with face coverings and
distancing.
Indoor museums, zoos, and aquariums can increase their capacity to 50%.
Movie theaters can increase their capacity to 50% up to 200 people, without food or
beverage concessions.
Allow some types of live performances with up to six performers to take place in a
drive-in setting.
Film productions can expand indoor activities and allow for removal of face coverings
under specific guidelines and can expand outdoor activities to up to 50 people.

 
GOAL: mid-November

Bars not serving food can re-open for outdoor operations, with specific health and safety
protocols that will be forthcoming.

 
Reopening of Schools - Ongoing
As state and local COVID-19 indicators permit, San Francisco schools may now resume in-
person learning with approved safety plans in place. San Francisco’s approach to the
reopening process for San Francisco TK-12 schools (transitional kindergarten through 12th
grade) prioritizes the reopening of younger grades for in-person learning. As many as 114
private, parochial or charters schools have requested applications for in-person learning this
fall. Almost 92 schools have submitted applications and 56 schools have been approved for
reopening. The applications are being reviewed on a rolling basis.
All San Francisco schools must meet minimum standards required by the state and DPH
before resuming in-person learning. This includes providing detailed plans on how they will
ensure adequate testing and contact tracing for their staff and students. Schools will work with
DPH to meet all the requirements for the safest reopening. The school reopening dashboard
identifies the schools that have begun this process by sending an initial letter of interest to
DPH to reopen, and shows where each school is in the approval process, including completion
of an on-site assessment.
 
Although additional indoor activities are being allowed, it is important to remember that
generally outdoor options remain safer because the COVID-19 virus travels in the air and
collects indoors. Older adults and those with COVID-19 risk factors should avoid indoor
crowds. All San Franciscans must do their part to limit the spread of COVID-19, including
face coverings, social distancing, hand washing, and avoiding gatherings.
 
 

###
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Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning Department 
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

                                   
 
 
Due to COVID-19, San Francisco Planning is not providing any in-person
services, but we are operating remotely. Our staff are available by e-mail, and
the Planning and Historic Preservation Commissions are convening remotely.
The public is encouraged to participate. Find more information on our
services here. 
 

From: Richard Rothman <rrothma@pacbell.net> 
Sent: Monday, October 19, 2020 11:14 AM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: Oct 21 item Preservation Activities Annual Reporting
 

 

Hello,
I would like to add this statement to the public record
 
Hello,
I just read your report for next Wednesday's meeting to the Historic Preservation
Commission about landmark status reports.
 
About the Mother's Building, this has been on the landmark worksheet for over 10
years. Why is this taking so long? I've looked in the staff file. Since it's a national
landmark, the staff has most of the information. I saw the letter in the file from over 10
years ago from the Planning Department to Rec and Park requesting to help make 
Mother's Building a City Landmark.
 
 I do not understand what's going on. I understand there are other projects, but this
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one always gets pushed to the side.
 
It is an important building in the history of the woman's movement in San Francisco.
The woman painted the murals in the building.
Please advise when your staff will start working on this landmark project.
 
Thanks
Richard Rothman    
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From: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Date: Monday, October 19, 2020 at 10:50 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES
IMPROVEMENTS TO SPEED UP AFFORDABLE HOUSING CONSTRUCTION
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, October 19, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES IMPROVEMENTS
TO SPEED UP AFFORDABLE HOUSING CONSTRUCTION

Nine informational bulletins will help shorten building approval time and ensure consistent
disability access across City projects

 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced new process improvements
to speed up the approval of affordable housing. These improvements, which are focused on
ensuring important disability access requirements can be done quickly and in a more
standardized fashion, are part of Mayor Breed’s goals of streamlining bureaucracy and
removing barriers that slow down housing production.
 
The Mayor’s Office on Disability issued nine new detailed Informational Bulletins to
standardize housing construction, strengthen consistency around the City’s application of
accessibility regulations and building codes, and improve field inspection outcomes. The
Bulletins were developed in collaboration with the Mayor’s Office of Housing and
Community Development, the Mayor’s Office on Disability, universal design expert Erick
Mikiten, AIA, and Mercy Housing California.
 
“Creating more housing in San Francisco remains a top priority during COVID-19 and will be
an important part of our City’s long-term economic recovery,” said Mayor Breed. “It’s
especially important that we continue creating affordable homes for people with a range of
access needs – whether they use a wheelchair, or are blind or Deaf. This new, consolidated
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE: 
Monday, October 19, 2020 
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org  
 


*** PRESS RELEASE *** 
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES IMPROVEMENTS TO 


SPEED UP AFFORDABLE HOUSING CONSTRUCTION 
Nine informational bulletins will help shorten building approval time and ensure consistent 


disability access across City projects 
 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced new process improvements to 
speed up the approval of affordable housing. These improvements, which are focused on 
ensuring important disability access requirements can be done quickly and in a more 
standardized fashion, are part of Mayor Breed’s goals of streamlining bureaucracy and removing 
barriers that slow down housing production.  
 
The Mayor’s Office on Disability issued nine new detailed Informational Bulletins to standardize 
housing construction, strengthen consistency around the City’s application of accessibility 
regulations and building codes, and improve field inspection outcomes. The Bulletins were 
developed in collaboration with the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development, 
the Mayor’s Office on Disability, universal design expert Erick Mikiten, AIA, and Mercy 
Housing California. 
 
“Creating more housing in San Francisco remains a top priority during COVID-19 and will be an 
important part of our City’s long-term economic recovery,” said Mayor Breed. “It’s especially 
important that we continue creating affordable homes for people with a range of access needs – 
whether they use a wheelchair, or are blind or Deaf. This new, consolidated information will 
make it so developers don’t have to reinvent the wheel every time they are building accessible 
units for people with different needs. Not only will it make the process more standardized, but it 
will help developers design and build in compliance more quickly, which will save time and help 
us make progress on our goal of creating at least 5,000 homes in San Francisco each year.” 
 
The Bulletins provide housing developers with the most current requirements for accessible 
construction. Architects and contractors will utilize the Bulletins from project inception 
throughout the design phase as a tool to navigate accessibility codes and make plan review more 
systematic. The Bulletins will also be employed in field inspection to ensure inspections are 
efficient, timely and predictable, and accelerate affordable housing construction. Prior to the 
Bulletins, developers relied on individualized accessibility consultations and City inspectors 
issued multiple accessibility compliance correction notices, which often led to delays and higher 
project costs. 
 
“Ensuring access for people with disabilities is a top priority for San Francisco and these 
Bulletins provide needed guidance to design professionals in making housing accessible to Deaf 
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and disabled residents,” said Nicole Bohn, Director of the Mayor’s Office on Disability. “The 
entire community benefits from consistent guidance that will result in better construction.”  
 
The Mayor’s Office on Disability (MOD) and the Mayor’s office of Housing and Community 
Development (MOHCD) partnered with Mercy Housing California and Erick Mikiten, a local 
architect with extensive accessibility and universal design experience, to create the bulletins.  
 
“Investing in the production and preservation of affordable housing with the highest level of 
access is a fundamental goal of the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development,” 
said Eric Shaw, MOHCD Director. “The creation of these new Bulletins is an example of our 
commitment to partnerships with the development community and the Mayor’s Office on 
Disability, and we are deeply proud of the end result.” 
 
Mercy Housing California worked with the City on the development of the Bulletins and used 
them during the design of the new Permanent Supportive Housing project that recently broke 
ground at 1064 Mission Street. 
 
“We are thrilled to see MOD’s leadership in helping the City consistently apply accessibility 
regulations and Codes, which will allow for greater speed and lower cost delivery of publicly 
financed affordable housing in San Francisco,” said Sharon Christen, Associate Director of 
Permanent Supportive Housing, Mercy Housing California. 
 
The bulletins are currently being used to aid in the design and construction of The Kelsey Civic 
Center, a development that will feature over 100 homes for San Franciscans of all abilities, 
incomes and backgrounds across the street from City Hall. The Kelsey will be incorporating 
Universal Design and the Information Bulletins will provide additional tools to the design team 
to establish the most comprehensive access strategies.  
 
“We are excited to continue working with MOD and MOHCD on The Kelsey Civic Center, a 
new affordable development that will implement Universal Design features throughout to allow 
for maximum accessibility for San Franciscans of all abilities,” said Doug Shoemaker, President 
Mercy Housing California. 
 
“These bulletins will help get more housing built more quickly, and ensure consistent levels of 
accessibility for residents,” said Erick Mikiten, AIA of Mikiten Architecture. “As a wheelchair 
rider and affordable housing designer, I know the challenges designers face navigating the 
webwork of national, state, and local building requirements. A collaborative process, including 
input from multiple local architecture firms, led to bulletins that give clear guidance to everyone, 
and that set an accessibility benchmark for cities throughout the State.” 
 
The Informational Bulletins are available online here. 
 


### 
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information will make it so developers don’t have to reinvent the wheel every time they are
building accessible units for people with different needs. Not only will it make the process
more standardized, but it will help developers design and build in compliance more quickly,
which will save time and help us make progress on our goal of creating at least 5,000 homes in
San Francisco each year.”
 
The Bulletins provide housing developers with the most current requirements for accessible
construction. Architects and contractors will utilize the Bulletins from project inception
throughout the design phase as a tool to navigate accessibility codes and make plan review
more systematic. The Bulletins will also be employed in field inspection to ensure inspections
are efficient, timely and predictable, and accelerate affordable housing construction. Prior to
the Bulletins, developers relied on individualized accessibility consultations and City
inspectors issued multiple accessibility compliance correction notices, which often led to
delays and higher project costs.
 
“Ensuring access for people with disabilities is a top priority for San Francisco and these
Bulletins provide needed guidance to design professionals in making housing accessible to
Deaf and disabled residents,” said Nicole Bohn, Director of the Mayor’s Office on Disability.
“The entire community benefits from consistent guidance that will result in better
construction.”
 
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
access is a fundamental goal of the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community
Development,” said Eric Shaw, MOHCD Director. “The creation of these new Bulletins is an
example of our commitment to partnerships with the development community and the
Mayor’s Office on Disability, and we are deeply proud of the end result.”
 
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
 
The bulletins are currently being used to aid in the design and construction of The Kelsey
Civic Center, a development that will feature over 100 homes for San Franciscans of all
abilities, incomes and backgrounds across the street from City Hall. The Kelsey will be
incorporating Universal Design and the Information Bulletins will provide additional tools to
the design team to establish the most comprehensive access strategies.
 
“We are excited to continue working with MOD and MOHCD on The Kelsey Civic Center, a
new affordable development that will implement Universal Design features throughout to
allow for maximum accessibility for San Franciscans of all abilities,” said Doug Shoemaker,
President



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
webwork of national, state, and local building requirements. A collaborative process,
including input from multiple local architecture firms, led to bulletins that give clear guidance
to everyone, and that set an accessibility benchmark for cities throughout the State.”
 
The Informational Bulletins are available online here.
 

###
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From: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Date: Friday, October 16, 2020 at 10:06 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED: SCHOOL DISTRICT
SHOULD FOCUS ON PUBLIC SCHOOL REOPENING, NOT RENAMING
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, October 16, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** STATEMENT ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED: SCHOOL DISTRICT SHOULD

FOCUS ON PUBLIC SCHOOL REOPENING, NOT RENAMING
 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today issued the following statement on the
San Francisco Unified School District’s ongoing process to consider renaming public schools.
 
“Schools have been allowed to open in San Francisco under public health orders issued at the
beginning of September and while many private schools are open today, our public schools
have still not yet made a firm plan to open. Parents are frustrated and looking for answers. The
achievement gap is widening as our public schools kids are falling further behind every single
day. As a City, we have provided the school district $15 million from our general fund for
support during this pandemic, opened Community Hubs to help our students with learning
under adult supervision, and our Department of Public Health has worked with the District and
provided guidance on how to safely reopen. I know this isn’t easy, I know there are tough
choices to be made, but the School District and the Board of Education need to do what needs
to be done to get our kids back in school. 
 
And now, in the midst of this once in a century challenge, to hear that the District is focusing
energy and resources on renaming schools -- schools that they haven’t even opened -- is
offensive. It’s offensive to parents who are juggling their children’s daily at-home learning
schedules with doing their own jobs and maintaining their sanity. It’s offensive to me as
someone who went to our public schools, who loves our public schools, and who knows how

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
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
beginning of September and while many private schools are open today, our public schools have 
still not yet made a firm plan to open. Parents are frustrated and looking for answers. The 
achievement gap is widening as our public schools kids are falling further behind every single 
day. As a City, we have provided the school district $15 million from our general fund for 
support during this pandemic, opened Community Hubs to help our students with learning under 
adult supervision, and our Department of Public Health has worked with the District and 
provided guidance on how to safely reopen. I know this isn’t easy, I know there are tough 
choices to be made, but the School District and the Board of Education need to do what needs to 
be done to get our kids back in school.  
 
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
those years in the classroom are what lifted me out of poverty and into college. It’s offensive to 
our kids who are staring at screens day after day instead of learning and growing with their 
classmates and friends. 
 
Look, I believe in equity. It’s at the forefront of my administration and we’ve made historic 
investments to address the systemic racism confronting our city. But the fact that our kids aren’t 
in school is what’s driving inequity in our City. Not the name of a school. We are in a pandemic 
right now that is forcing us all to prioritize what truly matters. Conversations around school 
names can be had once the critical work of educating our young people in person is underway. 
Once that is happening, then we can talk about everything else. Until those doors are open, the 
School Board and the District should be focused on getting our kids back in the classroom.” 
 
 


### 
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY; CTYPLN - CP TEAM (TAC - Preservation); Hillis, Rich (CPC); Watty,

Elizabeth (CPC); RUIZ-ESQUIDE, ANDREA (CAT); WONG, VICTORIA (CAT)
Subject: HPC Calendars for October 21, 2020
Date: Thursday, October 15, 2020 2:29:38 PM
Attachments: 20201021_hpc.pdf

20201021_hpc.docx
HPC Advance - 20201021.xlsx
HPC Hearing Results 2020.docx

Commissioners,
Attached are your Calendars for October 21, 2020.
 
Cheers,
 
Jonas P. Ionin,
Director of Commission Affairs
 
Planning Department│City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309│Fax: 415-558-6409
 
jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
www.sfplanning.org
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 commissions.secretary@sfgov.org or (628) 652-7589 at least 48 hours in advance. 
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Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance 
Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the 
City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City 
operations are open to the people's review.  
 
For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of 
the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 
554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San 
Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine. 
  
Privacy Policy 
Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act 
and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted.  
 
Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its 
commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made 
available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This 
means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit 
to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may 
inspect or copy. 
  
San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance 
Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist 
Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity.  For more information about 
the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 
252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics. 
  
Accessible Meeting Information 
Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday 
through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at 
the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance.   
 
Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness 
stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6, 9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services, 
call (415) 701-4485 or call 311. 
 
Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking 
Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall.  
 
Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other accommodations, 
please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing. 
 
Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589), or 
commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing. 
 
Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related 
disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings. 
 
SPANISH:  Agenda para la Comisión de Preservación de Edificios y Lugares Históricos (Historic Preservation Commission).  Si desea asistir a la 
audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato para asistencia auditiva, llame al (628) 652-7589. Por favor llame por lo 
menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia. 


CHINESE: 歷史保護委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電(628) 652-7589。請在聽證會舉行之前的至


少48個小時提出要求。 


TAGALOG: Adyenda ng Komisyon para sa Pangangalaga ng Kasaysayan (Historic Preservation Commission Agenda). Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o 
para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa (628) 652-7589. Mangyaring tumawag 
nang maaga (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig.  


RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по защите памятников истории. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным 
слуховым устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру (628) 652-7589. Запросы должны делаться минимум 
за 48 часов до начала слушания.



mailto:sotf@sfgov.org
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http://www.sfgov.org/ethics
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Remote Access to Information and Participation  
 


In accordance with Governor Newsom’s statewide order for all residents to Shelter-in-place - and the 
numerous preceding local and state proclamations, orders and supplemental directions - aggressive 
directives have been issued to slow down and reduce the spread of the COVID-19 virus.  
 
On May 29, 2020, the Historic Preservation Commission was authorized to conduct their hearings 
remotely. Therefore, the Historic Preservation Commission meeting will be held via videoconferencing 
and allow for remote public comment. The Commission strongly encourages interested parties to 
submit their comments in writing, in advance of the hearing to commissions.secretary@sfgov.org. Visit 
the SFGovTV website (www.sfgovtv.org) to stream the live meetings or watch on a local television 
station.  


The public comment call-in line number is (415) 655-0001.  You will also need an access code to join the 
meeting.  The access code for this hearing is 146 088 7048. This information will also be provided on the 
Department’s webpage www.sfplanning.org and during the live SFGovTV broadcast. 
 
As the COVID-19 emergency progresses, please visit the Planning website regularly to be updated on 
the current situation as it affects the hearing process and the Historic Preservation Commission. 
 


 ROLL CALL:   
 President: Aaron Hyland 
 Vice President: Diane Matsuda 


  Commissioners:                 Kate Black, Chris Foley, Richard S.E. Johns, Jonathan 
Pearlman, Lydia So 


 
A. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
 


At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public 
that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items. With 
respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the 
item is reached in the meeting.  Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to 
three minutes. 
 
The Brown Act forbids a commission from taking action or discussing any item not appearing on 
the posted agenda, including those items raised at public comment.  In response to public 
comment, the commission is limited to:  
 
(1)  responding to statements made or questions posed by members of the public; or 
(2)  requesting staff to report back on a matter at a subsequent meeting; or  
(3)  directing staff to place the item on a future agenda.  (Government Code Section 54954.2(a)) 


 
B. DEPARTMENT MATTERS 


 
1. Director’s Announcements  
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2. Review of Past Events at the Planning Commission, Staff Report and Announcements 
 
C. COMMISSION MATTERS  
 


3. President’s Report and Announcements 
  
4. Commission Comments & Questions 


• Disclosures. 
• Inquiries/Announcements.  Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may 


make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to 
the Commissioner(s). 


• Future Meetings/Agendas.  At this time, the Commission may discuss and take 
action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that 
could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of 
the Historic Preservation Commission. 


 
D. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE 
 


The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date.  The Commission may 
choose to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or 
to hear the item on this calendar. 
 
5. 2020-003248PCA  (V. FLORES (628-652-7525) 


STATE-MANDATED ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT CONTROLS [BF 201008] – Planning Code 
Amendments – Ordinance amending the Planning Code to clarify the ministerial approval 
process for certain Accessory Dwelling Units meeting certain requirements in single-family 
and multifamily buildings; affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the 
California Environmental Quality Act; and making findings of consistency with the General 
Plan, and the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1. 
Preliminary Recommendation:  Approval with Modifications 
(Proposed for Continuance to November 4, 2020) 


 
E. REGULAR CALENDAR   


 
6a. 2020-008542LBR (K. WILBORN: (628) 652-7355) 


2200 CESAR CHAVEZ STREET – Located on the north side of Cesar Chavez Street between 
Vermont and Connecticut Streets, Assessor’s Block 4327A, Lot 007 (District 10). 
Consideration of adoption of a resolution recommending Small Business Commission 
approval of a Legacy Business Registry application. Secret Studios has served San Francisco 
for 38 years. The Legacy Business Registry recognizes longstanding, community-serving 
businesses that are valuable cultural assets to the City. In addition, the City intends that the 
Registry be a tool for providing educational and promotional assistance to Legacy 
Businesses to encourage their continued viability and success. The subject business is 
within a PDR-2 (Production, Distribution, and Repair) Zoning District and 65-J Height and 
Bulk District.  
Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval 
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6b. 2020-008543LBR (K. WILBORN: (628) 652-7355) 


2025 JERROLD AVENUE – Located on the southwest side of Jerrold Avenue Street between 
Milton I Ross Lane and Selby Street, Assessor’s Block 5284A, Lot 006 (District 10). 
Consideration of adoption of a resolution recommending Small Business Commission 
approval of a Legacy Business Registry application. Washington Vegetable has served San 
Francisco for 89 years. The Legacy Business Registry recognizes longstanding, community-
serving businesses that are valuable cultural assets to the City. In addition, the City intends 
that the Registry be a tool for providing educational and promotional assistance to Legacy 
Businesses to encourage their continued viability and success. The subject business is 
within a PDR-2 (Production, Distribution, and Repair) Zoning District and 80-E Height and 
Bulk District.  
Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval 


 
6c. 2020-008540LBR (M. BISHOP: (628) 652-7440) 


2201 SUTTER STREET – Located on the south side of Sutter Street between Scott and Pierce 
Streets, Assessor’s Block 0681, Lot 001 (District 5). Consideration of adoption of a 
resolution recommending Small Business Commission approval of a Legacy Business 
Registry application. Iyengar Yoga Association of Northern California has served San 
Francisco for 45 years. The Legacy Business Registry recognizes longstanding, community-
serving businesses that are valuable cultural assets to the City. In addition, the City intends 
that the Registry be a tool for providing educational and promotional assistance to Legacy 
Businesses to encourage their continued viability and success. The subject business is 
within a RH-3 (Residential-House, Three Family) Zoning District and 50-X Height and Bulk 
District.  
Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval 


 
6d. 2020-008541LBR (M. BISHOP: (628) 652-7440) 


412 VALENCIA STREET – Located on the west side of Valencia Street between 15th and 
16th Streets, Assessor’s Block 3555, Lot 002 (District 8). Consideration of adoption of a 
resolution recommending Small Business Commission approval of a Legacy Business 
Registry application. Munroe Motors Inc.  has served San Francisco for 62 years. The Legacy 
Business Registry recognizes longstanding, community-serving businesses that are 
valuable cultural assets to the City. In addition, the City intends that the Registry be a tool 
for providing educational and promotional assistance to Legacy Businesses to encourage 
their continued viability and success. The subject business is within the Valencia Street NCT 
(Neighborhood Commercial Transit) Zoning District and 55-X Height and Bulk District.  
Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval 
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6e. 2020-008544LBR (G. GUNTHER: (628) 652-7607) 
225 11th STREET – Located on the east side of 11th Street between Howard and Kissling 
Streets, Assessor’s Block 3517, Lot 030 (District 9). Consideration of adoption of a 
resolution recommending Small Business Commission approval of a Legacy Business 
Registry application. Don Ramon’s Mexican Restaurant, Inc. has served San Francisco for 38 
years. The Legacy Business Registry recognizes longstanding, community-serving 
businesses that are valuable cultural assets to the City. In addition, the City intends that the 
Registry be a tool for providing educational and promotional assistance to Legacy 
Businesses to encourage their continued viability and success. The subject business is 
within a RED-MX (Residential Enclave - Mixed) Zoning District and 45-X Height and Bulk 
District.  
Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval 


 
6f. 2020-008538LBR (G. GUNTHER: (628) 652-7607) 


2237 MASON STREET – Located on the west side of Mason Street between Chestnut and 
Water Streets, Assessor’s Block 0051, Lot 002 (District 3). Consideration of adoption of a 
resolution recommending Small Business Commission approval of a Legacy Business 
Registry application. Fior d’Italia has served San Francisco for 134 years. The Legacy 
Business Registry recognizes longstanding, community-serving businesses that are 
valuable cultural assets to the City. In addition, the City intends that the Registry be a tool 
for providing educational and promotional assistance to Legacy Businesses to encourage 
their continued viability and success. The subject business is within the North Beach NCD 
(Neighborhood Commercial District) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District.  
Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval 
 


7a. 2019-023182COA (S. CISNEROS: (628) 652-7363) 
351 SAN CARLOS STREET – Located on the east side of San Carlos Street between 20th and 
21st Streets, Assessor’s Block 3609, Lot 105 (District 9). Request for a Certificate of 
Appropriateness pursuant to Planning Code Section 1006 for a major alteration and rear 
façade changes to the residential building, including raising the building 18 inches to 
accommodate a garage, window changes at the rear, an addition at the second floor, and 
modifications to the rear.  The building is located in the Liberty Hill Landmark District, 
designated under Article 10 of the Planning Code. The subject property is located in the 
RTO-M (Residential Transit Oriented – Mission) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk 
District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of 
CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).  
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 


 
7b. 2019-023182VAR (S. CISNEROS: (628) 652-7363) 


351 SAN CARLOS STREET – Located on the east side of San Carlos Street between 20th and 
21st Streets, Assessor’s Block 3609, Lot 105 (District 8). Request for a Variance from rear 
yard requirements under Section 134 of the Planning Code to allow the building to be 
raised 18 inches to accommodate a new garage. The rear of the existing building at the 
basement and first floor, including the existing deck and stairs, projects into the required 
rear yard. The project proposes to modify a portion of roof within the required rear yard 
and to raise the building in its existing footprint including the existing portion within the 
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required rear yard. The subject property is located in the RTO-M (Residential Transit 
Oriented – Mission) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. 


 
8. 2020-008490DES (F. MCMILLEN: (628) 652-7376) 


1830 SUTTER STREET – located on the north side of Sutter Street between Webster and 
Buchanan streets, Lot 035 in Assessor’s Block 0676 (District 5). Consideration to Initiate 
Landmark Designation of the Japanese YWCA/Issei Women’s Building (1830 Sutter Street) 
as an individual Article 10 Landmark pursuant to Section 1004.1 of the Planning Code. The 
Japanese YWCA/Issei Women’s Building is significant for its association with Japanese 
American women and the founding of the first independent Japanese YWCA in the United 
States. The property is significant for its association with African American civil rights 
movement as the building served as the San Francisco chapter on the Committee on Racial 
Equality (CORE) and numerous gatherings, meetings and events to advance African 
American civil rights. The building is also significant for its association with LGBTQ history 
as the property was the center of Bayard Rustin’s organizing activities early in his career 
and was location of the first convention of the Mattachine Society in 1954. The building is 
also significant as an excellent example of the work of master architect, Julia Morgan. 1830 
Sutter is located in a RM-3 (Residential-Mixed, Medium Density) Zoning District and 40-X 
Height and Bulk district.   
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve 
 


9. 2015-007181OTH (M. BOUDREAUX: (628) 652-7375) 
PRESERVATION REPORTING AND LANDMARKS UPDATE  – Informational Presentation on 
the Planning Department’s preservation activities reporting schedule and update on 
Landmark Designations. 
Preliminary Recommendation: None -  Informational 
 


ADJOURNMENT 
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Hearing Procedures 
The Historic Preservation Commission holds public hearings on the first and third Wednesday, of most months. The full hearing 
schedule for the calendar year and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org.  
 
Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item.  
 When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.  


Speakers will hear two alarms.  The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining.  The second louder 
sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended. 


 
Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are 
prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or 
use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use 
of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings). 
 
For most cases that are considered by the Historic Preservation Commission, after being introduced by the Commission 
Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order: 
 


1. Presentation by Staff; 
2. Presentation by the Project Sponsor’s Team (which includes: the sponsor, representative, legal counsel, architect, 


engineer, expeditor and/or any other advisor) for a period not to exceed ten (10) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair; 
3. Public testimony from supporters of the Project not to exceed three (3) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair; 
4. Presentation by Organized Opposition recognized by the Commission President through written request prior to the 


hearing for a period not to exceed ten (10) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair; 
5. Public testimony from opponents of the Project not to exceed three (3) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair; 
6. Staff follow-up and/or conclusions; 
7. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened 


by the Chair; 
8. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or 


continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission. 
 
Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of 
four (4) votes.  A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any 
Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members 
present constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission). 
 
Hearing Materials 
Each item on the Agenda may include the following documents: 


• Planning Department Case Executive Summary 
• Planning Department Case Report 
• Draft Motion or Resolution with Findings and/or Conditions 
• Public Correspondence 


 
Materials submitted to the Historic Preservation Commission prior to a scheduled hearing will become part of the public record 
only when the materials are also provided to the Commission Secretary and/or Project Planner.  Correspondence may be emailed 
directly to the Commission Secretary at: commissions.secretary@sfgov.org.   
 
Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Historic Preservation 
Commission, 49 South Van Ness, 14th Floor, San Francisco, CA  94103-2414.  Written comments received by the close of the 
business day prior to the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Historic Preservation Commission and made part of the 
official record.   
 
Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be 
received by the Planning Department reception eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing.  All submission packages 
must be delivered to 49 South Van Ness, 14th Floor, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) copies. 
 



http://www.sfplanning.org/

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
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Day-of Submissions: Material related to a calendared item may be distributed at the hearing. Please provide ten (10) copies for 
distribution.  
 
Appeals 
The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Historic Preservation 
Commission hearing. 
 


Case Type Case Suffix Appeal Period* Appeal Body 
Certificate of Appropriateness COA (A) 30 calendar days Board of Appeals** 
CEQA Determination - EIR ENV (E) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors 
Permit to Alter/Demolish PTA (H) 30 calendar days Board of Appeals** 


 
**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project 
requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal.  An appeal of an 
Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization. 
 
For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  For more 
information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or 
board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org.  
 
Challenges 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, the approval of (1) a Certificate of Appropriateness, (2) a 
Permit to Alter, (3) a Landmark or Historic District designation, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone 
else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Historic Preservation 
Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing. 
 
Proposition F 
Under Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 1.127, no person or entity with a financial interest in a land use 
matter pending before the Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, Building Inspection Commission, Commission on Community 
Investment and Infrastructure, Historic Preservation Commission, Planning Commission, Port Commission, or the Treasure Island 
Development Authority Board of Directors, may make a campaign contribution to a member of the Board of Supervisors, the 
Mayor, the City Attorney, or a candidate for any of those offices, from the date the land use matter commenced until 12 months 
after the board or commission has made a final decision or any appeal to another City agency from that decision has been 
resolved.  For more information about this restriction, visit sfethics.org. 



mailto:board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org
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Kate Black, Chris Foley, Richard S.E. Johns, 

Jonathan Pearlman, Lydia So



Commission Secretary:

Jonas P. Ionin









[bookmark: _Hlk36802641]Hearing Materials are available at:

Website: http://www.sfplanning.org

Planning Department, 49 South Van Ness, 14th Floor







Commission Hearing Broadcasts:

Live stream: https://www.sfgovtv.org/planning









Disability and language accommodations available upon request to:

 commissions.secretary@sfgov.org or (628) 652-7589 at least 48 hours in advance.



Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance

[bookmark: _Hlk879281]Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review. 



For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine.

 

Privacy Policy

Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted. 



Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect or copy.

 

San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity.  For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics.

 

Accessible Meeting Information

Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance.  



Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6, 9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services, call (415) 701-4485 or call 311.



Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall. 



Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.



Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589), or commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.



Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings.



SPANISH:  Agenda para la Comisión de Preservación de Edificios y Lugares Históricos (Historic Preservation Commission).  Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato para asistencia auditiva, llame al (628) 652-7589. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia.

CHINESE: 歷史保護委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電(628) 652-7589。請在聽證會舉行之前的至少48個小時提出要求。

TAGALOG: Adyenda ng Komisyon para sa Pangangalaga ng Kasaysayan (Historic Preservation Commission Agenda). Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa (628) 652-7589. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig. 

RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по защите памятников истории. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным слуховым устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру (628) 652-7589. Запросы должны делаться минимум за 48 часов до начала слушания.



[bookmark: _Hlk37062483]Remote Access to Information and Participation 



[bookmark: _Hlk37426845]In accordance with Governor Newsom’s statewide order for all residents to Shelter-in-place - and the numerous preceding local and state proclamations, orders and supplemental directions - aggressive directives have been issued to slow down and reduce the spread of the COVID-19 virus. 



On May 29, 2020, the Historic Preservation Commission was authorized to conduct their hearings remotely. Therefore, the Historic Preservation Commission meeting will be held via videoconferencing and allow for remote public comment. The Commission strongly encourages interested parties to submit their comments in writing, in advance of the hearing to commissions.secretary@sfgov.org. Visit the SFGovTV website (www.sfgovtv.org) to stream the live meetings or watch on a local television station. 

[bookmark: _Hlk48037677]The public comment call-in line number is (415) 655-0001.  You will also need an access code to join the meeting.  The access code for this hearing is 146 088 7048. This information will also be provided on the Department’s webpage www.sfplanning.org and during the live SFGovTV broadcast.



As the COVID-19 emergency progresses, please visit the Planning website regularly to be updated on the current situation as it affects the hearing process and the Historic Preservation Commission.



 ROLL CALL:		

	President:	Aaron Hyland

	Vice President:	Diane Matsuda

		Commissioners:                	Kate Black, Chris Foley, Richard S.E. Johns, Jonathan Pearlman, Lydia So



A.	GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT



At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items. With respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the item is reached in the meeting.  Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to three minutes.



The Brown Act forbids a commission from taking action or discussing any item not appearing on the posted agenda, including those items raised at public comment.  In response to public comment, the commission is limited to: 



(1)  responding to statements made or questions posed by members of the public; or

(2)  requesting staff to report back on a matter at a subsequent meeting; or 

(3)  directing staff to place the item on a future agenda.  (Government Code Section 54954.2(a))



B.	DEPARTMENT MATTERS



1.	Director’s Announcements	

	

2.	Review of Past Events at the Planning Commission, Staff Report and Announcements



C.	COMMISSION MATTERS 



3.	President’s Report and Announcements

	

4.	Commission Comments & Questions

· Disclosures.

· Inquiries/Announcements.  Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to the Commissioner(s).

· Future Meetings/Agendas.  At this time, the Commission may discuss and take action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of the Historic Preservation Commission.



D.	CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE



The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date.  The Commission may choose to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or to hear the item on this calendar.



5.	2020-003248PCA 	(V. FLORES (628-652-7525)

STATE-MANDATED ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT CONTROLS [BF 201008] – Planning Code Amendments – Ordinance amending the Planning Code to clarify the ministerial approval process for certain Accessory Dwelling Units meeting certain requirements in single-family and multifamily buildings; affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the California Environmental Quality Act; and making findings of consistency with the General Plan, and the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1.

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approval with Modifications

(Proposed for Continuance to November 4, 2020)



E.	REGULAR CALENDAR  



6a.	2020-008542LBR	(K. WILBORN: (628) 652-7355)

2200 CESAR CHAVEZ STREET – Located on the north side of Cesar Chavez Street between Vermont and Connecticut Streets, Assessor’s Block 4327A, Lot 007 (District 10). Consideration of adoption of a resolution recommending Small Business Commission approval of a Legacy Business Registry application. Secret Studios has served San Francisco for 38 years. The Legacy Business Registry recognizes longstanding, community-serving businesses that are valuable cultural assets to the City. In addition, the City intends that the Registry be a tool for providing educational and promotional assistance to Legacy Businesses to encourage their continued viability and success. The subject business is within a PDR-2 (Production, Distribution, and Repair) Zoning District and 65-J Height and Bulk District. 

Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval



6b.	2020-008543LBR	(K. WILBORN: (628) 652-7355)

2025 JERROLD AVENUE – Located on the southwest side of Jerrold Avenue Street between Milton I Ross Lane and Selby Street, Assessor’s Block 5284A, Lot 006 (District 10). Consideration of adoption of a resolution recommending Small Business Commission approval of a Legacy Business Registry application. Washington Vegetable has served San Francisco for 89 years. The Legacy Business Registry recognizes longstanding, community-serving businesses that are valuable cultural assets to the City. In addition, the City intends that the Registry be a tool for providing educational and promotional assistance to Legacy Businesses to encourage their continued viability and success. The subject business is within a PDR-2 (Production, Distribution, and Repair) Zoning District and 80-E Height and Bulk District. 

Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval



6c.	2020-008540LBR	(M. BISHOP: (628) 652-7440)

2201 SUTTER STREET – Located on the south side of Sutter Street between Scott and Pierce Streets, Assessor’s Block 0681, Lot 001 (District 5). Consideration of adoption of a resolution recommending Small Business Commission approval of a Legacy Business Registry application. Iyengar Yoga Association of Northern California has served San Francisco for 45 years. The Legacy Business Registry recognizes longstanding, community-serving businesses that are valuable cultural assets to the City. In addition, the City intends that the Registry be a tool for providing educational and promotional assistance to Legacy Businesses to encourage their continued viability and success. The subject business is within a RH-3 (Residential-House, Three Family) Zoning District and 50-X Height and Bulk District. 

Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval



6d.	2020-008541LBR	(M. BISHOP: (628) 652-7440)

412 VALENCIA STREET – Located on the west side of Valencia Street between 15th and 16th Streets, Assessor’s Block 3555, Lot 002 (District 8). Consideration of adoption of a resolution recommending Small Business Commission approval of a Legacy Business Registry application. Munroe Motors Inc.  has served San Francisco for 62 years. The Legacy Business Registry recognizes longstanding, community-serving businesses that are valuable cultural assets to the City. In addition, the City intends that the Registry be a tool for providing educational and promotional assistance to Legacy Businesses to encourage their continued viability and success. The subject business is within the Valencia Street NCT (Neighborhood Commercial Transit) Zoning District and 55-X Height and Bulk District. 

Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval






[bookmark: _Hlk53465304]6e.	2020-008544LBR	(G. GUNTHER: (628) 652-7607)

225 11th STREET – Located on the east side of 11th Street between Howard and Kissling Streets, Assessor’s Block 3517, Lot 030 (District 9). Consideration of adoption of a resolution recommending Small Business Commission approval of a Legacy Business Registry application. Don Ramon’s Mexican Restaurant, Inc. has served San Francisco for 38 years. The Legacy Business Registry recognizes longstanding, community-serving businesses that are valuable cultural assets to the City. In addition, the City intends that the Registry be a tool for providing educational and promotional assistance to Legacy Businesses to encourage their continued viability and success. The subject business is within a RED-MX (Residential Enclave - Mixed) Zoning District and 45-X Height and Bulk District. 

Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval



6f.	2020-008538LBR	(G. GUNTHER: (628) 652-7607)

2237 MASON STREET – Located on the west side of Mason Street between Chestnut and Water Streets, Assessor’s Block 0051, Lot 002 (District 3). Consideration of adoption of a resolution recommending Small Business Commission approval of a Legacy Business Registry application. Fior d’Italia has served San Francisco for 134 years. The Legacy Business Registry recognizes longstanding, community-serving businesses that are valuable cultural assets to the City. In addition, the City intends that the Registry be a tool for providing educational and promotional assistance to Legacy Businesses to encourage their continued viability and success. The subject business is within the North Beach NCD (Neighborhood Commercial District) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. 

Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval



7a.	2019-023182COA	(S. CISNEROS: (628) 652-7363)

351 SAN CARLOS STREET – Located on the east side of San Carlos Street between 20th and 21st Streets, Assessor’s Block 3609, Lot 105 (District 9). Request for a Certificate of Appropriateness pursuant to Planning Code Section 1006 for a major alteration and rear façade changes to the residential building, including raising the building 18 inches to accommodate a garage, window changes at the rear, an addition at the second floor, and modifications to the rear.  The building is located in the Liberty Hill Landmark District, designated under Article 10 of the Planning Code. The subject property is located in the RTO-M (Residential Transit Oriented – Mission) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



7b.	2019-023182VAR	(S. CISNEROS: (628) 652-7363)

351 SAN CARLOS STREET – Located on the east side of San Carlos Street between 20th and 21st Streets, Assessor’s Block 3609, Lot 105 (District 8). Request for a Variance from rear yard requirements under Section 134 of the Planning Code to allow the building to be raised 18 inches to accommodate a new garage. The rear of the existing building at the basement and first floor, including the existing deck and stairs, projects into the required rear yard. The project proposes to modify a portion of roof within the required rear yard and to raise the building in its existing footprint including the existing portion within the required rear yard. The subject property is located in the RTO-M (Residential Transit Oriented – Mission) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District.



8.	2020-008490DES	(F. MCMILLEN: (628) 652-7376)

1830 SUTTER STREET – located on the north side of Sutter Street between Webster and Buchanan streets, Lot 035 in Assessor’s Block 0676 (District 5). Consideration to Initiate Landmark Designation of the Japanese YWCA/Issei Women’s Building (1830 Sutter Street) as an individual Article 10 Landmark pursuant to Section 1004.1 of the Planning Code. The Japanese YWCA/Issei Women’s Building is significant for its association with Japanese American women and the founding of the first independent Japanese YWCA in the United States. The property is significant for its association with African American civil rights movement as the building served as the San Francisco chapter on the Committee on Racial Equality (CORE) and numerous gatherings, meetings and events to advance African American civil rights. The building is also significant for its association with LGBTQ history as the property was the center of Bayard Rustin’s organizing activities early in his career and was location of the first convention of the Mattachine Society in 1954. The building is also significant as an excellent example of the work of master architect, Julia Morgan. 1830 Sutter is located in a RM-3 (Residential-Mixed, Medium Density) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk district.  

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve



[bookmark: _GoBack]9.	2015-007181OTH	(M. BOUDREAUX: (628) 652-7375)

PRESERVATION REPORTING AND LANDMARKS UPDATE  – Informational Presentation on the Planning Department’s preservation activities reporting schedule and update on Landmark Designations.

Preliminary Recommendation: None -  Informational



ADJOURNMENT




Hearing Procedures

The Historic Preservation Commission holds public hearings on the first and third Wednesday, of most months. The full hearing schedule for the calendar year and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org. 



Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item. 

· When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.  Speakers will hear two alarms.  The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining.  The second louder sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended.



Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings).



For most cases that are considered by the Historic Preservation Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:



1. Presentation by Staff;

2. Presentation by the Project Sponsor’s Team (which includes: the sponsor, representative, legal counsel, architect, engineer, expeditor and/or any other advisor) for a period not to exceed ten (10) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

3. Public testimony from supporters of the Project not to exceed three (3) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

4. Presentation by Organized Opposition recognized by the Commission President through written request prior to the hearing for a period not to exceed ten (10) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

5. Public testimony from opponents of the Project not to exceed three (3) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

6. Staff follow-up and/or conclusions;

7. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened by the Chair;

8. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission.



Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of four (4) votes.  A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members present constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission).



Hearing Materials

Each item on the Agenda may include the following documents:

· Planning Department Case Executive Summary

· Planning Department Case Report

· Draft Motion or Resolution with Findings and/or Conditions

· Public Correspondence



Materials submitted to the Historic Preservation Commission prior to a scheduled hearing will become part of the public record only when the materials are also provided to the Commission Secretary and/or Project Planner.  Correspondence may be emailed directly to the Commission Secretary at: commissions.secretary@sfgov.org.  



Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Historic Preservation Commission, 49 South Van Ness, 14th Floor, San Francisco, CA  94103-2414.  Written comments received by the close of the business day prior to the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Historic Preservation Commission and made part of the official record.  



Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be received by the Planning Department reception eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing.  All submission packages must be delivered to 49 South Van Ness, 14th Floor, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) copies.



Day-of Submissions: Material related to a calendared item may be distributed at the hearing. Please provide ten (10) copies for distribution. 



Appeals

The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Historic Preservation Commission hearing.



		Case Type

		Case Suffix

		Appeal Period*

		Appeal Body



		Certificate of Appropriateness

		COA (A)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Appeals**



		CEQA Determination - EIR

		ENV (E)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Permit to Alter/Demolish

		PTA (H)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Appeals**







**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal.  An appeal of an Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization.



For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  For more information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org. 



Challenges

Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, the approval of (1) a Certificate of Appropriateness, (2) a Permit to Alter, (3) a Landmark or Historic District designation, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Historic Preservation Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing.



Proposition F

Under Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 1.127, no person or entity with a financial interest in a land use matter pending before the Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, Building Inspection Commission, Commission on Community Investment and Infrastructure, Historic Preservation Commission, Planning Commission, Port Commission, or the Treasure Island Development Authority Board of Directors, may make a campaign contribution to a member of the Board of Supervisors, the Mayor, the City Attorney, or a candidate for any of those offices, from the date the land use matter commenced until 12 months after the board or commission has made a final decision or any appeal to another City agency from that decision has been resolved.  For more information about this restriction, visit sfethics.org.
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Advance

				To:		Historic Preservation Commission

				From:		Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

				Re:		Advance Calendar

						All items and dates are tentative and subject to change.



				October 21, 2020						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		2020-003248PCA		State-Mandated ADU Ordinance				to: 11/4						Flores

						Planning Code Amendment

		Various		Legacy Business Registry Applications										Wilborn

						Five Applications

		2019-023182COAVAR		351 San Carlos Street										Cisneros

						alterations to a contributing building in the Liberty Hill Landmark District

		2020-008490DES		1830 Sutter Street 										McMillen

						Article 10 designation of the Japanese YWCA - Initiation

				Landmarks Update										Boudreaux

						Informational

				Mills Act										TBD

						Informational - Criteria

				November 4, 2020						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		Various		Legacy Business Registry Applications										Wilborn

						Five Applications

		2014.1036E		447 Battery Street										Schuett

						DEIR

				American Indian Cultural District										Caltagirone

						Planning Code Amendment

		2020-003248PCA		State-Mandated ADU Ordinance				fr: 10/21						Flores

						Planning Code Amendment

				November 18, 2020						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		2016-008192SRV		1830 Sutter Street 										McMillen

						Article 10 designation of the Japanese YWCA - Adoption

		2018-000505COA		370 Lexington Street										Salgado

						 legalizing work done at the front and secondary facades

				Citywide Cultural Resources Survey Update										Boudreaux

						Informational

				December 2, 2020						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		Various		Legacy Business Registry Applications										Wilborn

						Five Applications

		2017-012086ENV		770 Woolsey Avenue										Callagy

						Review and comment on draft preservation alternatives

				December 16, 2020						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		2016-008192SRV		Glide Memorial Church										McMillen

						National Register nomination

				January 6, 2021						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		2018-001788ENV		554 Fillmore Street										Ferguson

						Review and comment on PMND

		2015-005890DES		554 Fillmore Street										Ferguson

						Landmark Designation Recommendation
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Action Items

		HPC Action Items								 

		Date		Item						CONT.		NOTES		HEARING DATE

		3/7/12		Priorities on Landmark Designation Work Program										TBD

						Pending completion of Preserve America Grant Tasks

		3/21/12		Discussion of incentives and preservation tools for historic cultural uses/resources										TBD

						Follow-up based on 12/5/12 Hearing

		6/20/12		HPC Review and Comment of CEQA Ducuments										TBD

						Pending request with Environmental Planning

		12/19/12		Condition of Mothers Building										TBD

						With RecPark and Arts Commission Representatives

		2/6/13		Update on monastery materials to return back to Santa Maria de 'Ovila Monastery in Spain										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Martinez

		2/6/13		Status update on Settlement Agreement re: mitigation monitoring and enforcement										TBD

						Request by President Damkroger & Commissioner Martinez

		2/6/13		Status of Golden Gate Park Landmark Designation, including Stow Lake Boat House										TBD

						Request by President Damkroger

		3/6/13		Update on Preservation Website										5/15/13

						Request by Commissioner Wolfram

		10/2/13		Inventory of Interpretive displays associated with EIRs										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Johns

		5/15/13		2nd Update on Preservation Website										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Wolfram

		10/2/13		Inventory of Interpretive displays associated with EIRs										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Johns

		2/5/14		Discuss HPC promotion and involvement in 20% Federal Rehabilitation Tax Credit Program										TBD

						Request by Vice President Wolfram, with representatives from OHP

		2/19/14		Update on Draft Preservation Element										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Matsuda, President Hasz 

		2/19/14		Discuss local application of Secretary of the Interior's Standards										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Pearlman

		2/19/14		Status of Golden Gate Park Landmark Designation, including Stow Lake Boat House										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Matsuda
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To:		Staff

From:	Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

Re:		Historic Preservation Commission Hearing Results

	

NEXT RESOLUTION No:  1145

NEXT MOTION No:  0428

NEXT COMMENT LETTER:  0089

M = Motion; R = Resolution; L = HPC Comment Letter

   October 7, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft HPC Minutes for September 16, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-1140

		2020-004819MLS

		450 Pacific Avenue

		Kirby

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+6 -0 (Pearlman recused)



		R-1141

		2020-004811MLS

		1315 Waller Street

		Taylor

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1142

		2020-004685MLS

		59 Potomac Street

		[bookmark: _GoBack]Ferguson

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		M-0427

		2019-012604PTA

		1035 Howard Street

		Giacomucci

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+6 -0 (Black absent)



		R-1143

		2020-008397CRV

		2868 Mission Street

		LaValley

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+6 -0 (Black absent)



		R-1144

		2020-008400CRV

		535 Green Street

		McMillen

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+6 -0 (Black absent)



		

		2019-021884ENV

		2500 Mariposa Street

		Greving

		Reviewed and Commented

		







   September 16, 2020 ARC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-023623COA

		130 Townsend Street

		Westhoff

		Reviewed and Commented

		







   September 16, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for August 19, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for September 2, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		

		2019-014146ENV

		520 John Muir Drive

		Greving

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		R-1135

		2020-007531LBR

		915 Howard Street

		Wu

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1136

		2020-007532LBR

		1315 18th Street

		Wu

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1137

		2020-007533LBR

		989 Market Street

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1138

		2020-007534LBR

		2480 San Bruno Avenue

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1139

		2020-007535LBR

		906 Cole Street

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0







  September 2, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		Continued to September 16, 2020

		+6 -0 (Pearlman absent)



		M-0424

		2020-001258PTA-02

		447 Minna Street

		Salgado

		Approved

		+6 -0 (Pearlman absent)



		M-0425

		2018-013643COA

		556-560 Scott Street

		Kwiatkowska

		Approved

		+6 -0 (Pearlman absent)



		M-0426

		2019-017681COA

		55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive -Music Concourse, Golden Gate Park

		Taylor

		Approved

		+6 -0 (Pearlman absent)







   August 19, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for July 15, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted as Amended

		+7 -0



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		Continued to September 2, 2020

		+7 -0



		M-0421

		2020-004998COA

		35 Onondaga Avenue

		Cisneros

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		R-1128

		2020-006843LBR

		1663 Mission Street, Suite 225

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1129

		2020-006847LBR

		1615 20th STREET

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1130

		2020-006871LBR

		1330 25th STREET

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1131

		2020-006872LBR

		919 Kearny Street

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1132

		2020-006873LBR

		376 Fillmore Street

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1133

		2020-006874LBR

		718 Grant Avenue

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		M-0422

		2019-005728COA

		945-947 Minnesota Street

		Giacomucci

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff

		+7 -0



		

		2019-005728VAR

		945-947 Minnesota Street

		Giacomucci

		Continued Indefinitely

		



		M-0423

		2019-021832COA

		300 Bartlett Street (3359 24th Street)

		Cisneros

		Approved with Conditions as amended directing the Sponsor to continue working with staff on design, specifically:

1. Color of exterior cladding to be lighter and in keeping with existing;

2. No wholesale removal of roof tiles;

3. Double entry doors;

4. Interior detailing of stair and ceiling; and

5. Bartlett side addition window to relate to the 24th Street side.

and, conduct additional community outreach as it relates to construction.

		+7 -0



		R-1134

		2020-006641DES

		“History of Medicine in California” Frescoes, 533 Parnassus Avenue

		LaValley

		Adopted a Recommendation for Landmark Designation as amended that the murals remain together on Parnassus.

		+6 -0 (Foley absent)



		

		2020-005090OTH

		UCSF Comprehensive Parnassus Heights Plan

		Cleemann

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2016-003351CWP

		Centering Planning on Racial and Social Equity

		Flores

		Reviewed and Commented

		







  July 15, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 17, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted as Amended

		+6 -0 (Johns absent)



		R-1127

		2016-003351CWP

		Resolution Centering Preservation Planning on Racial and Social Equity

		Caltagirone

		Adopted with Amendments, directing Staff to continue working with the HPC Officers on the final resolution language.

		+6 -0 (Johns absent)



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		Continued to August 19, 2020

		+6 -0 (Johns absent)



		

		2018-013643COA

		556-560 SCOTT STREET

		Kwiatkowska

		Continued to September 2, 2020

		+6 -0 (Johns absent)



		

		2020-000052PCA

		Standard Environmental Requirements [BF TBD

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

		Acting ZA Continued to August 19, 2020

		



		R-1125

		2020-005179PCA

		Continuation of Use for Certain Nonconforming Parking Lots - Mission Street Neighborhood Commercial Transit District [BF 200421]

		Flores

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+6 -0 (Johns absent)



		R-1126

		2019-006264DES

		1315 Waller Street

		McMillen

		Adopted a Resolution Supporting the Nomination

		+6 -0 (Johns absent)







  June 17, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes For HPC May 6, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Foley absent)



		

		

		Motion Directing Staff to Draft a Resolution supporting the Department’s efforts re: Racial & Social Equity

		

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Foley disqualified)



		

		

		Letter Supporting The Legacy Business Program

		Caltagirone

		Adopted with Amendments

		+6 -0 (Foley disqualified)



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		Continued to July 1, 2020

		+6 -0 (Foley disqualified)



		

		2018-013643COA

		556-560 Scott Street

		Kwiatkowska

		Continued to July 15, 2020

		+6 -0 (Foley disqualified)



		

		2019-017767DES

		Lake Street Landmark District

		LaValley

		Continued Indefinitely

		+6 -0 (Foley disqualified)



		M-0419

		2015-014170COA-02

		804-806 22nd Street

		Giacomucci

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Foley disqualified)



		M-0420

		2015-013876PTA

		207 Powell Street

		Westhoff

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Foley disqualified)



		

		2017-004557ENV

		550 O’farrell Street

		McKellar

		Reviewed and Commented

		







   June 3, 2020 HPC Cancellation and Continuances:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		Continued to June 17, 2020

		



		

		2015-014170COA-02

		804-806 22nd Street

		Giacomucci

		Continued to June 17, 2020

		







  May 20, 2020 HPC Cancellation and Continuances:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		Continued to June 3, 2020

		



		

		2018-013643COA

		556-560 Scott Street

		Kwiatkowska

		Continued to June 17, 2020

		







  May 6, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for ARC February 5, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for HPC April 15, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted as Amended and Corrected

		+7 -0



		

		

		Certified Local Government Program (CLG) Annual Report

		Boudreaux

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2020-000052PCA

		Standard Environmental Requirements [BF TBD]

		Flores

		Continued to July 15, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to May 20, 2020.

		+7 -0



		R-1124

		2019-022536DES

		4767-4773 Mission Street

		McMillen

		Approved

		+7 -0



		

		

		Legacy Business Program

		Caltagirone

		Reviewed and Commented

		







   April 15, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		Continued to May 6, 2020

		+7 -0



		M-0416

		2019-017569COA

		735 Montgomery Street

		Salgado

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-0417

		2019-016968COA

		1086-1088 Fulton Street

		Kwiatkowska

		Approved

		+7 -0



		M-0418

		2020-000441COA

		53-57 Potomac Street

		Ferguson

		Approved

		+7 -0



		

		2020-000052PCA

		Standard Environmental Requirements [BF TBD]

		Flores

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to May 6, 2020

		+7 -0



		R-1120

		2020-003292LBR

		715 Harrison Street

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1121

		2020-003293LBR

		1414 Ocean Avenue

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1122

		2020-003294LBR

		25 Van Ness Avenue

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1123

		2020-003295LBR

		285 South Van Ness Avenue

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0







  April 15, 2020 ARC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-021832COA

		300 Bartlett Street

		Cisneros

		Reviewed and Commented

		







April 1, 2020 ARC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-021832COA

		300 Bartlett Street

		Cisneros

		Continued to April 15, 2020

		







April 1, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

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

		53-57 POTOMAC STREET

		Ferguson

		Continued to April 15, 2020

		



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 VALLEJO STREET

		Ferguson

		Continued to April 15, 2020

		



		

		2019-022536DES

		4767-4773 Mission Street

		McMillen

		Continued to May 6, 2020

		







March 18, 2020 ARC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-021832COA

		300 Bartlett Street

		Cisneros

		Continued to April 1, 2020

		







March 18, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-022126COA-03

		55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive

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

		







February 19, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 5, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-0412

		2016-013739COA-02

		933-935 Valencia Street

		Kwiatkowska

		Approved

		+7 -0



		M-0413

		2019-001839COA

		1128 Market Street

		Vimr

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-0414

		2019-001318COA

		740 Tennessee Street

		Giacomucci

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include:

1. Historic wood siding rather that plaster;

2. Distinctly different wood siding to be used for the bay windows; and 

3. Wood windows for the rear elevation.

		+7 -0



		M-0415

		2019-022126COA-02

		55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive

		Taylor

		Approved with Conditions as amended to eliminate the proposed lighted sign.

		+5 -0 (Hyland recused; So absent)







February 5, 2020 ARC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-004772COA

		3250-70 18th Street

		Giacomucci

		Reviewed and Commented

		







February 5, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 15, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2019-022536DES

		4767-4773 Mission Street

		McMillen

		Continued to March 18, 2020

		+7 -0



		M-0411

		2019-019493PTA

		972 Mission Street

		Salgado

		Approved

		+7 -0



		R-1118

		2019-023608CRV

		FY 2019-2021 Proposed Department Budget and Work Program

		Landis

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval as amended

		+7 -0



		

		2019-016220OTH

		Mural Projects

		Gunther

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-1119

		2019-022536DES

		4767-4773 Mission Street

		McMillen

		Initiated

		+7 -0







January 15, 2020 ARC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street, Landmark #31

		Ferguson

		Reviewed and Commented

		







January 15, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for December 18, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Election of Officers

		Ionin

		Hyland – President;

Matsuda – Vice.



Pearlman, Black, So – ARC;

Matsuda – Cultural Heritage Liaison.

		+7 -0



		

		2019-023608CRV

		FY 2020-2022 Proposed Department Budget and Work Program

		Landis

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		

		SB 330: Housing Crisis Act of 2019

		Bintliff

		None - Informational

		



		R-1115

		2020-000031LBR

		2883 Mission Street

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1116

		2020-000032LBR

		160 Ellis Street

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval as amended

		+7 -0



		R-1117

		2020-000035LBR

		1201 Divisadero Street

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		M-0407

		2019-022126COA

		55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive

		Taylor

		Approved with Conditions as amended:

1. Eliminating the provision for any extension beyond March 31, 2021; and

2. Recommending Rec&Park conduct community outreach regarding the effect of lighting and implement measures to mitigate its impact.

		+4 -1 (Hyland recused; Foley absent)



		M-0408

		2018-010825COA

		694 Tennessee Street

		Giacomucci

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Foley, Matsuda absent)



		

		2018-010825VAR

		694 Tennessee Street

		Giacomucci

		Acting ZA Closed the public hearing and indicated an Intent to Grant

		



		M-0409

		2017-001073COA

		1701 Franklin Street

		Vimr

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Pearlman recused; Foley, Matsuda absent)



		M-0410

		2019-007049COA

		600 Stockton Street

		Vimr

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Foley, Matsuda absent)
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES CEREMONIAL GROUNDBREAKING OF 100%

AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN THE EXCELSIOR FUNDED BY AFFORDABLE HOUSING BONDS
Date: Thursday, October 15, 2020 10:42:52 AM
Attachments: 10.15.20 4840 Mission Street Groundbreaking.pdf

 
 
Jonas P. Ionin,
Director of Commission Affairs
 
Planning Department│City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309│Fax: 415-558-6409
 
jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
www.sfplanning.org
 

From: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Thursday, October 15, 2020 10:36 AM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES CEREMONIAL
GROUNDBREAKING OF 100% AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN THE EXCELSIOR FUNDED BY AFFORDABLE
HOUSING BONDS
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, October 15, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES CEREMONIAL

GROUNDBREAKING OF 100% AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN
THE EXCELSIOR FUNDED BY AFFORDABLE HOUSING

BONDS
4840 Mission Street is one of the first new affordable housing developments to be built in

District 11 and will provide housing for 137 families once complete
 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today participated in the ceremonial
groundbreaking of 137 affordable homes at 4840 Mission Street. The site is one of the first
new 100% affordable housing developments built in District 11, and one of the first major
projects in the Excelsior in nearly 25 years. Once completed in early 2023, 4840 Mission will
feature a number of community benefits, including an expanded Excelsior branch of the
Mission Neighborhood Health Center (MNHC).
 
4840 Mission is funded in part by the voter approved 2015 Affordable Housing General
Obligation Bond, used for predevelopment funding, and the 2019 Affordable Housing General
Obligation Bond, to be used for construction and permanent funding.
 

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
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OFFICE OF THE MAYOR  LONDON N. BREED 
 SAN FRANCISCO                                                                    MAYOR  
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE: 
Thursday, October 15, 2020 
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
 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today participated in the ceremonial 
groundbreaking of 137 affordable homes at 4840 Mission Street. The site is one of the first new 
100% affordable housing developments built in District 11, and one of the first major projects in 
the Excelsior in nearly 25 years. Once completed in early 2023, 4840 Mission will feature a 
number of community benefits, including an expanded Excelsior branch of the Mission 
Neighborhood Health Center (MNHC). 
 
4840 Mission is funded in part by the voter approved 2015 Affordable Housing General 
Obligation Bond, used for predevelopment funding, and the 2019 Affordable Housing General 
Obligation Bond, to be used for construction and permanent funding. 
 
“4840 Mission will bring over a hundred new affordable homes to the Excelsior and Outer 
Mission, and because of our neighborhood preference legislation, many of these homes will 
serve residents who already live in the area. We must keep advancing projects like this one to 
make up for decades of underbuilding in San Francisco,” said Mayor Breed. “I want to thank 
Supervisor Safaí and all the residents who advocated for more housing in their neighborhood. 
This project is possible thanks to their efforts and the affordable housing bonds that 
San Francisco voters passed in 2015 and 2019.” 
 
The 4840 Mission Street site is the former location of the Valente Marini Perata & Co. Funeral 
Home. In 2015, BRIDGE Housing Corporation (BRIDGE) made an offer for the lot and in June 
2017, BRIDGE, with assistance from the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community 
Development (MOHCD) and the San Francisco Housing Accelerator Fund purchased the land at 
a below market price. 
 
“This project is years in the making and I am proud to finally be able to celebrate it publicly 
today because it will provide much-needed affordable housing for working families in a district 
that has seen a dearth of new affordable housing for decades,” said Supervisor Ahsha Safaí. “In 
addition to affordable housing, this project will also be the new home for the neighborhood’s 
existing nonprofit clinic, the Mission Neighborhood Health Center, and will also include an art 
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component highlighting the Excelsior’s rich history. This is a win for all of San Franciscans and 
am extremely proud of what we collectively achieved.” 
 
The 137-unit development at 4840 Mission, which is being developed by BRIDGE, has 35 
apartments set aside for existing HOPE SF residents voluntarily relocating from Potrero Terrace 
and Potrero Annex. Amenities at 4840 Mission will include a community room, bicycle parking, 
public art, and an expanded Excelsior Branch of the MNHC, which will offer low-cost medical, 
behavioral health, and dental services to the neighborhood. The project also includes 
construction of a public pedestrian walkway that will connect Alemany Boulevard to Mission 
Street. 
 
“We’re excited to bring 137 affordable homes for families to the Excelsior neighborhood, plus 
expanded health care access through Mission Neighborhood Health Center,” said Cynthia 
Parker, President and CEO of BRIDGE Housing. “Thanks to the SF Housing Accelerator Fund, 
the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development and the streamlining provided 
under SB 35, we look forward to delivering 100% affordable housing to the community.” 
 
The five-story building, designed by Van Meter Williams Pollack includes one-bedroom, two-
bedroom, and three-bedroom apartments. Once complete, the new homes will be available to 
applicants with a broad range of incomes including 30%, 40%, 50%, 95% and 109% Area 
Median Income (AMI) or below. 
 
“Mission Neighborhood Health Center is delighted to see a permanent home for our Excelsior 
Clinic and eager to double the number of families served in this new and larger space,” said 
Brenda Storey, Executive Director of MNHC. “An affordable home and an affordable medical 
home in the same building!” 
 
“We are so proud to partner with BRIDGE and MOHCD to catalyze more than 130 new 
affordable homes in the Excelsior,” said Rebecca Foster, CEO, San Francisco Housing 
Accelerator Fund. “This was an inaugural loan for the HAF and as it moves into the construction 
stage we are close to celebrating financing our thousandth unit of permanently affordable 
housing.” 
 
Major financing for 4840 Mission Street was provided by a $51.6 million investment from 
MOHCD that enabled the $121 million project to move forward. The San Francisco Housing 
Accelerator Fund provided an acquisition loan of $9 million with additional financing support 
coming from tax credit equity investors and commercial construction and permanent lenders. 
Operating subsidies will be delivered through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development’s Project Based Voucher program administered by the San Francisco Housing 
Authority. 
 
 


### 
 







“4840 Mission will bring over a hundred new affordable homes to the Excelsior and Outer
Mission, and because of our neighborhood preference legislation, many of these homes will
serve residents who already live in the area. We must keep advancing projects like this one to
make up for decades of underbuilding in San Francisco,” said Mayor Breed. “I want to thank
Supervisor Safaí and all the residents who advocated for more housing in their neighborhood.
This project is possible thanks to their efforts and the affordable housing bonds that
San Francisco voters passed in 2015 and 2019.”
 
The 4840 Mission Street site is the former location of the Valente Marini Perata & Co. Funeral
Home. In 2015, BRIDGE Housing Corporation (BRIDGE) made an offer for the lot and in
June 2017, BRIDGE, with assistance from the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community
Development (MOHCD) and the San Francisco Housing Accelerator Fund purchased the land
at a below market price.
 
“This project is years in the making and I am proud to finally be able to celebrate it publicly
today because it will provide much-needed affordable housing for working families in a
district that has seen a dearth of new affordable housing for decades,” said Supervisor Ahsha
Safaí. “In addition to affordable housing, this project will also be the new home for the
neighborhood’s existing nonprofit clinic, the Mission Neighborhood Health Center, and will
also include an art component highlighting the Excelsior’s rich history. This is a win for all of
San Franciscans and am extremely proud of what we collectively achieved.”
 
The 137-unit development at 4840 Mission, which is being developed by BRIDGE, has 35
apartments set aside for existing HOPE SF residents voluntarily relocating from Potrero
Terrace and Potrero Annex. Amenities at 4840 Mission will include a community room,
bicycle parking, public art, and an expanded Excelsior Branch of the MNHC, which will offer
low-cost medical, behavioral health, and dental services to the neighborhood. The project also
includes construction of a public pedestrian walkway that will connect Alemany Boulevard to
Mission Street.
 
“We’re excited to bring 137 affordable homes for families to the Excelsior neighborhood, plus
expanded health care access through Mission Neighborhood Health Center,” said Cynthia
Parker, President and CEO of BRIDGE Housing. “Thanks to the SF Housing Accelerator
Fund, the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development and the streamlining
provided under SB 35, we look forward to delivering 100% affordable housing to the
community.”
 
The five-story building, designed by Van Meter Williams Pollack includes one-bedroom, two-
bedroom, and three-bedroom apartments. Once complete, the new homes will be available to
applicants with a broad range of incomes including 30%, 40%, 50%, 95% and 109% Area
Median Income (AMI) or below.
 
“Mission Neighborhood Health Center is delighted to see a permanent home for our Excelsior
Clinic and eager to double the number of families served in this new and larger space,” said
Brenda Storey, Executive Director of MNHC. “An affordable home and an affordable medical
home in the same building!”
 
“We are so proud to partner with BRIDGE and MOHCD to catalyze more than 130 new
affordable homes in the Excelsior,” said Rebecca Foster, CEO, San Francisco Housing
Accelerator Fund. “This was an inaugural loan for the HAF and as it moves into the



construction stage we are close to celebrating financing our thousandth unit of permanently
affordable housing.”
 
Major financing for 4840 Mission Street was provided by a $51.6 million investment from
MOHCD that enabled the $121 million project to move forward. The San Francisco Housing
Accelerator Fund provided an acquisition loan of $9 million with additional financing support
coming from tax credit equity investors and commercial construction and permanent lenders.
Operating subsidies will be delivered through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development’s Project Based Voucher program administered by the San Francisco Housing
Authority.
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** STATEMENT *** SAN FRANCISCO MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SAN JOSE MAYOR SAM LICCARDO ON

PLAN BAY AREA TELECOMMUTE STRATEGY
Date: Wednesday, October 14, 2020 3:49:03 PM
Attachments: 10.14.20 Plan Bay Area Telecommute Strategy.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Wednesday, October 14, 2020 at 12:01 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** STATEMENT *** SAN FRANCISCO MAYOR LONDON BREED AND
SAN JOSE MAYOR SAM LICCARDO ON PLAN BAY AREA TELECOMMUTE
STRATEGY
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, October 14, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** STATEMENT ***
SAN FRANCISCO MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SAN JOSE

MAYOR SAM LICCARDO ON PLAN BAY AREA
TELECOMMUTE STRATEGY

 

San Francisco, CA — On September 23, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission
(MTC) approved the Final Blueprint for Plan Bay Area, which is a policy document to guide
the growth of the Bay Area through 2050. This Blueprint included a strategy of increasing the
number of Bay Area workers that work from home one or more days per week in pursuit of a
goal to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and traffic congestion. It would do this by mandating
all large office-based employers (25 or more employees) have at least 60 percent of their
employees telecommute on any given day.

 

San Francisco and San Jose have been working with the MTC over the last few weeks to
address significant challenges stemming from the proposal. Today, the 15 members of the Bay
Area delegation to the California State Legislature issued a letter raising significant concerns.

 

Mayors Breed and Liccardo released the following statement about the proposal:
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


 
San Francisco, CA — On September 23, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) 
approved the Final Blueprint for Plan Bay Area, which is a policy document to guide the growth 
of the Bay Area through 2050. This Blueprint included a strategy of increasing the number of 
Bay Area workers that work from home one or more days per week in pursuit of a goal to reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions and traffic congestion. It would do this by mandating all large office-
based employers (25 or more employees) have at least 60 percent of their employees 
telecommute on any given day. 
 
San Francisco and San Jose have been working with the MTC over the last few weeks to address 
significant challenges stemming from the proposal. Today, the 15 members of the Bay Area 
delegation to the California State Legislature issued a letter raising significant concerns.  
 
Mayors Breed and Liccardo released the following statement about the proposal: 
 
“As the Mayors of the two largest cities in the Bay Area, we appreciate the work the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission staff have committed to developing and completing the 
Plan Bay Area 2050 Blueprint that will help us meet our collective climate goals. We also 
acknowledge Plan Bay Area’s responsibility to meet State emissions reduction targets with a 
fiscally constrained transportation investment plan -- especially given the more recent impacts of 
COVID-19 on our respective communities.  
 
While we support many of the innovative and bold strategies MTC has developed to help address 
our shared transportation challenges and meet our emissions reduction targets, we remain 
concerned about the telecommute mandate and cannot support it as currently drafted. We look 
forward to working with MTC staff, and our colleagues, on refining this strategy and considering 
alternatives that allow us to equitably meet our GHG reduction target and support the vitality of 
our downtowns.” 
 
 


### 
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“As the Mayors of the two largest cities in the Bay Area, we appreciate the work the
Metropolitan Transportation Commission staff have committed to developing and
completing the Plan Bay Area 2050 Blueprint that will help us meet our collective climate
goals. We also acknowledge Plan Bay Area’s responsibility to meet State emissions reduction
targets with a fiscally constrained transportation investment plan -- especially given the more
recent impacts of COVID-19 on our respective communities.

 

While we support many of the innovative and bold strategies MTC has developed to help
address our shared transportation challenges and meet our emissions reduction targets, we
remain concerned about the telecommute mandate and cannot support it as currently drafted.
We look forward to working with MTC staff, and our colleagues, on refining this strategy and
considering alternatives that allow us to equitably meet our GHG reduction target and support
the vitality of our downtowns.”

 
 

###



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES OPENING OF SIX NEWLY RENOVATED

PLAYGROUNDS
Date: Wednesday, October 14, 2020 11:35:02 AM
Attachments: 10.14.20 Playground Renovations.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Wednesday, October 14, 2020 at 11:14 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES OPENING
OF SIX NEWLY RENOVATED PLAYGROUNDS
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, October 14, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES OPENING OF SIX

NEWLY RENOVATED PLAYGROUNDS
Playgrounds throughout the City were renovated as part Let’sPlaySF!, a partnership between

the San Francisco Recreation and Park Department and the San Francisco Parks Alliance
 

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and San Francisco Recreation and Park
Department General Manager Phil Ginsburg today announced the opening of six newly
renovated playgrounds. These renovations come as San Francisco moves forward with
reopening playgrounds citywide.
 
“The Recreation and Park Department has been hard at work making sure our playgrounds
continue to get the attention they need and deserve,” said Mayor Breed. “These renovations
could not have come at a better time for families across San Francisco. Every child deserves to
play in a safe, clean, and fun environment, and these updated playgrounds will serve our
young people for years to come.”
 
“We are incredibly pleased to reopen our playgrounds as dynamic hubs for creativity and
family life,” said Phil Ginsburg, General Manager, Recreation and Park Department. “From
imaginative new play structures that spark imagination to improved access for everyone, our
new play areas were designed with growing bodies and brains in mind.” 
 
Six neighborhood playgrounds completed their extensive makeovers over the last seven
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
renovated playgrounds. These renovations come as San Francisco moves forward with reopening 
playgrounds citywide. 
 
“The Recreation and Park Department has been hard at work making sure our playgrounds 
continue to get the attention they need and deserve,” said Mayor Breed. “These renovations 
could not have come at a better time for families across San Francisco. Every child deserves to 
play in a safe, clean, and fun environment, and these updated playgrounds will serve our young 
people for years to come.” 
 
“We are incredibly pleased to reopen our playgrounds as dynamic hubs for creativity and family 
life,” said Phil Ginsburg, General Manager, Recreation and Park Department. “From imaginative 
new play structures that spark imagination to improved access for everyone, our new play areas 
were designed with growing bodies and brains in mind.”   
 
Six neighborhood playgrounds completed their extensive makeovers over the last seven months. 
Five of the play area renovations are part of Let’sPlaySF!, a public-private partnership between 
the San Francisco Recreation and Park Department and the San Francisco Parks Alliance that is 
transforming 13 time-worn playgrounds across San Francisco. 
 
The sites were prioritized by a community task force, based on presence of unhealthy chemicals 
in playground wood, and with priority given to playgrounds in low-income neighborhoods dense 
with children. The program has its roots in the 2012 Clean and Safe Neighborhood Park Bond. 
When bond funds were not sufficient to renovate all of the sites recommended by the task force, 
the Parks Alliance stepped in to help secure private funding so that sites could be transformed.  
 
“These playgrounds are the result of years of strong will, hard work, and community organizing. 
The families and community members who all stepped in to support these efforts—despite 
setbacks—truly demonstrate our collective commitment to our children and youth,” said 
Supervisor Norman Yee, President of the Board of Supervisors. “These playground renovations 
are a central part to advancing San Francisco’s vision to become a truly Child-Friendly City 
where children shape spaces where they can be free, adventurous explorers and feel a deep sense 
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of belonging. We cannot wait for families to make new memories in these upgraded public 
spaces.” 
 
 “For far too long our playgrounds have not received the level of investment they deserve,” said 
Supervisor Ahsha Safaí. “I am glad that through the investment of Let’sPlaySF our children and 
families can have top tier playgrounds in their own neighborhoods. We’re going from having 
some of the worst playgrounds in the City, to some of the best!” 
 
“As mom of a young daughter, I can’t think of a more hopeful sign for our city right now than 
the reopening of playgrounds,” said Supervisor Hillary Ronen. “The beautiful new Redwood 
Grove picnic and play area is going to put smiles on little faces from the Portola and nearby 
neighborhoods. We need to keep investing in ways to make San Francisco a great place for 
families.” 
 
“The renovation of Sgt. John Macaulay Park has been a labor of love for the Tenderloin 
community,” said Supervisor Matt Haney. “We’re thrilled to open the park in its new form with 
new community stewards that will keep our kids healthy and safe.” 
 
Merced Heights Playground 
At the newly renovated Merced Heights Playground in the Oceanview-Merced Heights-Ingleside 
(OMI) neighborhood, families will find entirely new equipment, including a massive timber play 
structure, climbers, a spinner, and a bowl swing. Upgrades to lighting, fencing, sport courts, the 
clubhouse and ADA improvements were also included in this $2.9 million renovation. The 
reimagined playground, improvements to sport courts and a planned revamp of the park’s lower 
level are all part of a $5.3 million total overhaul. 
 
Alice Chalmers Playground 
The $3.7 million renovation of Alice Chalmers playground in the Crocker Amazon 
neighborhood includes a reimagined play area with new equipment for tot and school age 
children along with new safety surfacing, landscaping, trees, picnic tables and other seating, and 
improvements to the field. The restrooms and pathways have been upgraded and made more 
accessible.   
 
Sergeant John Macaulay Playground 
Sergeant John Macaulay playground in the Tenderloin has undergone a $2.9 million 
transformation to a safe, multi-generational park with a nature-inspired theme. Improvements, 
made in partnership with the Trust for Public Land, include custom-built children’s play 
structures, upgraded landscaping, seating, and accessibility.  
 
West Portal Playground 
West Portal playground’s $3.4 million makeover includes new, vibrant and inclusive play 
equipment, including a dragon-themed slide, in addition to a nature nook for children, new 
plantings, seating, and paving. 
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Redwood Grove Playground 
The redesigned Redwood Grove playground in McLaren Park incorporates natural elements such 
as boulders, timbers, and native plantings. A slide reaches from the top of the playground to the 
grassy lawn and a large net structure will allow children to climb to sweeping views of the City. 
The $2.8 million playground renovation is part of a larger $5.4 million overhaul that includes 
new restrooms and upgrades to the picnic areas, pathways, and lawn.  
 
“We’re ecstatic for families to experience the next five playgrounds of our Let’sPlaySF! 
campaign especially at a time when they’re needed most. This campaign, will benefit more than 
20,000 children throughout the City,” said Drew Becher, CEO, San Francisco Parks Alliance.  
 
Sunset Reservoir Playground 
A sixth site, the Sunset Reservoir Playground, has also undergone a major facelift thanks to the 
San Francisco Public Utilities Commission, which owns the Sunset Reservoir where the 
playground is located. The $200,000 project includes a new tot swing and slide, and new 
rubberized matting in a fun two-toned graphic pattern. 
 
 


### 







months. Five of the play area renovations are part of Let’sPlaySF!, a public-private
partnership between the San Francisco Recreation and Park Department and the San Francisco
Parks Alliance that is transforming 13 time-worn playgrounds across San Francisco.
 
The sites were prioritized by a community task force, based on presence of unhealthy
chemicals in playground wood, and with priority given to playgrounds in low-income
neighborhoods dense with children. The program has its roots in the 2012 Clean and Safe
Neighborhood Park Bond. When bond funds were not sufficient to renovate all of the sites
recommended by the task force, the Parks Alliance stepped in to help secure private funding
so that sites could be transformed.
 
“These playgrounds are the result of years of strong will, hard work, and community
organizing. The families and community members who all stepped in to support these efforts
—despite setbacks—truly demonstrate our collective commitment to our children and youth,”
said Supervisor Norman Yee, President of the Board of Supervisors. “These playground
renovations are a central part to advancing San Francisco’s vision to become a truly Child-
Friendly City where children shape spaces where they can be free, adventurous explorers and
feel a deep sense of belonging. We cannot wait for families to make new memories in these
upgraded public spaces.”
 
“For far too long our playgrounds have not received the level of investment they deserve,”
said Supervisor Ahsha Safaí. “I am glad that through the investment of Let’sPlaySF our
children and families can have top tier playgrounds in their own neighborhoods. We’re going
from having some of the worst playgrounds in the City, to some of the best!”
 
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
community,” said Supervisor Matt Haney. “We’re thrilled to open the park in its new form
with new community stewards that will keep our kids healthy and safe.”
 
Merced Heights Playground
At the newly renovated Merced Heights Playground in the Oceanview-Merced Heights-
Ingleside (OMI) neighborhood, families will find entirely new equipment, including a massive
timber play structure, climbers, a spinner, and a bowl swing. Upgrades to lighting, fencing,
sport courts, the clubhouse and ADA improvements were also included in this $2.9 million
renovation. The reimagined playground, improvements to sport courts and a planned revamp
of the park’s lower level are all part of a $5.3 million total overhaul.
 
Alice Chalmers Playground
The $3.7 million renovation of Alice Chalmers playground in the Crocker Amazon
neighborhood includes a reimagined play area with new equipment for tot and school age
children along with new safety surfacing, landscaping, trees, picnic tables and other seating,
and improvements to the field. The restrooms and pathways have been upgraded and made
more accessible. 
 



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
The redesigned Redwood Grove playground in McLaren Park incorporates natural elements
such as boulders, timbers, and native plantings. A slide reaches from the top of the playground
to the grassy lawn and a large net structure will allow children to climb to sweeping views of
the City. The $2.8 million playground renovation is part of a larger $5.4 million overhaul that
includes new restrooms and upgrades to the picnic areas, pathways, and lawn.
 
“We’re ecstatic for families to experience the next five playgrounds of our Let’sPlaySF!
campaign especially at a time when they’re needed most. This campaign, will benefit more
than 20,000 children throughout the City,” said Drew Becher, CEO, San Francisco Parks
Alliance.
 
Sunset Reservoir Playground
A sixth site, the Sunset Reservoir Playground, has also undergone a major facelift thanks to
the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission, which owns the Sunset Reservoir where the
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
Date: Wednesday, October 14, 2020 at 8:01 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES
REOPENING OF PLAYGROUNDS IN SAN FRANCISCO
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, October 14, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES REOPENING OF

PLAYGROUNDS IN SAN FRANCISCO
Playgrounds are now open with new signage and public health guidelines

 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, San Francisco Recreation and Park
Department General Manager Phil Ginsburg, and Director of Health Dr. Grant Colfax today
announced the City’s outdoor playgrounds are now open. San Francisco’s more than 180
public playgrounds will have signs reminding families of capacity limits and other guidelines
to prevent the spread of COVID-19. Recreation and Park Department monitors will be
stationed at the City’s busiest playgrounds for the first two weekends of operation to educate
families about the new rules and ensure health guidelines are followed.
 
“We know kids and parents have been missing playgrounds since the end of March, and I’m
excited that we’re now at a place where we can safely reopen them,” said Mayor Breed. “It’s
important kids have a place to explore, have fun, and get some outdoor exercise. We hope this
brings families and kids some joy during an otherwise challenging time.”
 
“We are thrilled to welcome families back to their neighborhood playgrounds and all the fun,
connection, and creativity they inspire,” said Phil Ginsburg, General Manager, San Francisco
Recreation and Park Department. “For kids, play is serious business. It is essential to their
cognitive, physical, social and emotional development. A trip to the playground relieves stress,
reduces anxiety, and promotes healthy bodies and imaginations.”   

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
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


 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, San Francisco Recreation and Park Department 
General Manager Phil Ginsburg, and Director of Health Dr. Grant Colfax today announced the 
City’s outdoor playgrounds are now open. San Francisco’s more than 180 public playgrounds 
will have signs reminding families of capacity limits and other guidelines to prevent the spread 
of COVID-19. Recreation and Park Department monitors will be stationed at the City’s busiest 
playgrounds for the first two weekends of operation to educate families about the new rules and 
ensure health guidelines are followed. 
 
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
 
Playgrounds are reopening with limits on the number of children and adults who can enter based 
on the size of the playground, and limits on the number of children who can use playground 
equipment at once. To comply with State regulations, playground visits must be limited to 30 
minutes when others are present. Visitors of all ages must stay 6 feet away from non-household 
members and everyone 2 and older must wear masks. To maximize the number of children who 
can play, only one adult may accompany each child.  
 
Eating and drinking are not allowed, and visitors should clean their hands before and after 
playing. Hand washing stations have been placed at the 51 playgrounds without restrooms 
through a generous donation by Kaiser Permanente and KABOOM!, a non-profit organization 
that helps communities build playgrounds. 
 
Adults must actively supervise children at all times and avoid non-essential cell phone use. If a 
caregiver must take a break, children should stay by their side until they can resume. Children 
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OFFICE OF THE MAYOR  LONDON N. BREED 
 SAN FRANCISCO                                                                    MAYOR  
     
 


 


1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, ROOM 200 
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681 


TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141 
 


 


younger than 2 must remain within arm’s reach of a caregiver and are not allowed on play 
structures that hold more than one child at a time.  
 
“Returning children to environments where they can learn and play has been a top priority since 
we were removed from the State watch list on September 1, and the re-opening of playgrounds 
follows our efforts re-opening out of school programs, community hubs and elementary 
schools,” said Dr. Grant Colfax. “Our successful and sustained re-opening is a result of every 
San Franciscan doing their part to keep our communities healthy and safer. We must continue 
these efforts for the sake of our children, our families, and our communities.” 
 
The San Francisco Department of Public Health offers families the following tips to play safely:  


• Go to the playground during days and times when there are fewer people. 
• Choose playgrounds within walking distance of your home instead of taking public 


transportation.  
• Choose smaller playgrounds with fewer people over larger playgrounds that can hold 


more people. 
• If your child is crying and cannot be consoled, remove them from the play structure or 


playground until they are calm, since loud crying can produce a large number of 
respiratory droplets. 


• If anyone in your household is experiencing symptoms of COVID-19, do not visit a 
playground. 


 
 


### 







 
Playgrounds are reopening with limits on the number of children and adults who can enter
based on the size of the playground, and limits on the number of children who can use
playground equipment at once. To comply with State regulations, playground visits must be
limited to 30 minutes when others are present. Visitors of all ages must stay 6 feet away from
non-household members and everyone 2 and older must wear masks. To maximize the number
of children who can play, only one adult may accompany each child.
 
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
 
“Returning children to environments where they can learn and play has been a top priority
since we were removed from the State watch list on September 1, and the re-opening of
playgrounds follows our efforts re-opening out of school programs, community hubs and
elementary schools,” said Dr. Grant Colfax. “Our successful and sustained re-opening is a
result of every San Franciscan doing their part to keep our communities healthy and safer. We
must continue these efforts for the sake of our children, our families, and our communities.”
 
The San Francisco Department of Public Health offers families the following tips to play
safely:

Go to the playground during days and times when there are fewer people.
Choose playgrounds within walking distance of your home instead of taking public
transportation.
Choose smaller playgrounds with fewer people over larger playgrounds that can hold
more people.
If your child is crying and cannot be consoled, remove them from the play structure or
playground until they are calm, since loud crying can produce a large number of
respiratory droplets.
If anyone in your household is experiencing symptoms of COVID-19, do not visit a
playground.

 
 

###
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From: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Date: Thursday, October 8, 2020 at 3:10 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO ECONOMIC RECOVERY TASK
FORCE RELEASES FINAL REPORT
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, October 8, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO ECONOMIC RECOVERY TASK FORCE

RELEASES FINAL REPORT
In initial response to comprehensive report, Mayor Breed announces plan to expand elements
of the Shared Spaces program beyond the pandemic, support businesses with grants to support

reopening, delay impact fees, initiate a basic income program for arts, and more
 

San Francisco, CA — Today the San Francisco Economic Recovery Task Force (ERTF)
released a report and policy recommendations at its final meeting, following months of
stakeholder convenings. Called together in early April by Mayor London N. Breed and Board
of Supervisors President Norman Yee, the ERTF began meeting within six weeks of the Stay
Safer at Home Health Order, bringing together over 100 leaders from business, hospitality,
labor, faith, education, non-profit, and community organizations to guide and inform San
Francisco’s economic recovery through COVID-19.
 
The ERTF was chaired by Assessor Carmen Chu, Treasurer José Cisneros, President of the
Chamber of Commerce Rodney Fong, and Executive Director of the Labor Council Rudy
Gonzalez. The report issued today summarizes the early economic impacts of COVID-19 and
the City’s immediate response to support residents, businesses and workers. The report
advances 41 policy recommendations that focus on long-term economic recovery and
development, narrowing the gap for vulnerable communities, and providing businesses more
opportunities and flexibility to operate and succeed in the short- and mid-term. 
 
In response to the report, Mayor Breed announced an initial series of steps to support San

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
In initial response to comprehensive report, Mayor Breed announces plan to expand elements of 


the Shared Spaces program beyond the pandemic, support businesses with grants to support 
reopening, delay impact fees, initiate a basic income program for arts, and more 


 
San Francisco, CA — Today the San Francisco Economic Recovery Task Force (ERTF) 
released a report and policy recommendations at its final meeting, following months of 
stakeholder convenings. Called together in early April by Mayor London N. Breed and Board of 
Supervisors President Norman Yee, the ERTF began meeting within six weeks of the Stay Safer 
at Home Health Order, bringing together over 100 leaders from business, hospitality, labor, faith, 
education, non-profit, and community organizations to guide and inform San Francisco’s 
economic recovery through COVID-19. 
 
The ERTF was chaired by Assessor Carmen Chu, Treasurer José Cisneros, President of the 
Chamber of Commerce Rodney Fong, and Executive Director of the Labor Council Rudy 
Gonzalez. The report issued today summarizes the early economic impacts of COVID-19 and the 
City’s immediate response to support residents, businesses and workers. The report advances 41 
policy recommendations that focus on long-term economic recovery and development, 
narrowing the gap for vulnerable communities, and providing businesses more opportunities and 
flexibility to operate and succeed in the short- and mid-term.  
 
In response to the report, Mayor Breed announced an initial series of steps to support San 
Francisco’s recovery, including moving forward on creating a plan to make elements of the 
Shared Spaces program permanent, providing direct funding support to businesses, creating a 
pilot basic income program for artists, supporting cultural districts, delaying impact fees, and 
waiving certain taxes and fees for businesses that remain closed. These are just the beginning of 
San Francisco’s work to get the City moving toward economic recovery and meeting the policies 
and goals set in the ERTF report. 
 
“San Francisco is only at the beginning of what we know is going to be a long road to recovery,” 
said Mayor London Breed. “Here in this City, I’ve been so proud of how we came together to 
combat this virus with a shared commitment to public health and keep one another safe. In the 
months and years ahead, it’s going to take that same collective effort to confront the economic 
devastation caused by this virus. I want to thank everyone who participated in the Economic 
Recovery Task Force, especially our co-chairs, for stepping up when San Francisco needed them 
most to come forward with their ideas and their energy. We need to continue to translate these 
ideas into action so we can get people back to work and get San Francisco moving forward.” 
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“We are grateful to all the Economic Recovery Task Force members coming together to offer 
ideas, recommendations, and a vision for San Francisco’s future,” said President Norman Yee. 
“We recognize the challenges so many of our businesses and residents are facing. I look forward 
to working with my Board colleagues, the Mayor, and the Co-Chairs to evaluate and to develop 
policies based on this Report to bring relief to the communities that need it most.” 
 
“The recommendations released today are a reflection of the immediate needs and aspirations of 
our Task Force and community.  I am especially proud that we never lost sight of the need to 
rebuild more equitably so that all our communities can prosper,” said Assessor Carmen Chu, Co-
Chair of the Economic Recovery Task Force. “This report is just the beginning, we must 
continue to adapt to emerging needs of this global pandemic. Our Task Force’s Shared Spaces 
program is an example of what is possible when we work with purpose and when we work 
together. Collectively, the Task Force, departments, Mayor’s Office and Board of Supervisors 
acted swiftly to remove obstacles and support a program that has since created opportunities for 
more than 1,600 businesses across the City. As we move forward, my hope is that we continue to 
rise to meet the future with the same passion, creativity, and collective purpose.” 
 
Over the last several months, the ERTF has been instrumental in supporting the City’s response 
to COVID, including by creating the City’s Shared Spaces program and helping lead the creation 
of the reopening roadmap, which provided a timeline and guidance for reopening San 
Francisco’s economy. The Shared Spaces program allows neighborhood businesses to share a 
portion of the public right-of-way, such as sidewalks, streets, or other nearby public or private 
spaces for dining and retail activity, and the City has issued over 1,600 Shared Spaces permits to 
date.  
 
Policy Recommendations 
The ERTF Report policy recommendations include actions that are both short-term and longer-
term. The City has already implemented some of the recommendations such as the Shared 
Spaces program, business tax deferrals, increased testing capability across the City, and 
expanded sick leave programs. The recommendations focus on the following areas of need: 
 


• Local Economic Stimulus - explore policies and investments that encourage economic 
development and activity in San Francisco, such as funding public infrastructure projects, 
streamlining permitting processes, advocacy for state and federal resources, and more  


• Job Connections - facilitate and improve connection to jobs and explore programs that 
hire local workers 


• Promote Safe Reopening - provide clear and accessible information to businesses and 
workers on reopening requirements and provide tools and strategies to keep workers, 
customers, and residents safe  


• Preserve Operations and Lessen Regulatory Burdens - create flexibility for businesses 
to operate and consider reducing or eliminating regulatory burdens  


• Pursue Economic Justice - narrow the wealth gap and bridge the digital divide for low-
income residents and communities of color 
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• Invest in Housing - incentivize the construction of affordable housing, an immediate and 
long-term need  


• Meet the Basic Needs of the Vulnerable - ensure San Franciscans have access to food, 
shelter, mental health, and other services  


• Imagine and Build Stronger Neighborhoods - activate and draw upon San Francisco’s 
unique neighborhood and cultural assets 


 
For the full list of detailed policy recommendations, read the report here: onesanfrancisco.org 
 
“When San Francisco faces an incredible challenge, the entire community pulls together,” said 
Treasurer José Cisneros. “The Economic Recovery Task Force convened government leaders 
and community members to chart the roadmap for restoring San Francisco’s economic strength. 
We will return from this pandemic like we rebuilt after the earthquakes and like we endured 
through the AIDS crisis. I am grateful to all the Task Force members for the contributions they 
made. Their work will guide us on our journey ahead.” 
 
“The entire business community thanks Mayor London Breed and President Norman Yee for 
pulling together this diverse group of stakeholders to shape and solve the challenges COVID-19 
has brought to San Francisco,” said Rodney Fong, President and CEO, San Francisco Chamber 
of Commerce. “We have a long road to recovery ahead of us, but if we are able to come together 
as San Franciscans, I’m confident that we will rebuild San Francisco as a better and more 
equitable city.” 
 
“The ERTF has been a productive and important step in what will continue to be a campaign 
toward a just and equitable recovery,” said Rudy Gonzalez, Executive Director of the San 
Francisco Labor Council. “I’m excited to see SF lead the way in developing high road workforce 
training and career opportunities especially for our hardest hit communities.” 
 
Immediate Actions 
The Mayor will initiate several immediate actions informed by the ERTF report today and 
aligned with the areas of need identified in the policy recommendations. These are just the first 
in a series of actions that will be forthcoming to support San Francisco’s economic recovery. 
 
Extending Shared Spaces: Building off of the early successes of the Shared Spaces program, the 
City will work to make elements of the program permanent. The existing Shared Spaces program 
will continue throughout the duration of the local emergency in San Francisco, which remains in 
effect, and the new effort will incorporate lessons learned and ensure that the program’s benefits 
to businesses and the community continue throughout San Francisco’s long-term recovery and 
beyond. 
 
Economic Support for Small Business Reopenings: The City will provide $1.6 million in grants 
and design services to support neighborhood businesses that need to purchase furniture and 
fixtures and reconfigure space in order to meet health requirements for operating. This funding 
will come by re-purposing grant funding from the SF Shines program, which normally gives 



https://www.onesanfrancisco.org/covid-19-recovery
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grants to businesses for facade improvements. Additionally, the City will provide $200,000 for 
businesses that need legal support and assistance negotiating their leases. 
 
Basic Income Pilot for Artists: San Francisco is directing nearly $6 million in funding for artists, 
teaching artists, arts organizations, and cultural workers, including a new universal basic income 
pilot program for San Francisco artists. The UBI program will provide up to 130 artists with 
$1,000 a month for at least six months starting early next year. The Arts Commission will also 
provide arts organizations with funding to reopen safely and will fund the creation of an online 
Arts Hub, which will serve as a one-stop-shop for artists and organizations looking for financial 
assistance, professional networking, and employment opportunities. Next week, the Arts 
Commission will open four other grant programs for artists, arts organizations, and cultural 
facilities. The Office of Economic and Workforce Development will make $265,000 available to 
fund artists to paint murals with a public health theme on boarded up businesses and deploy 
performance artists to promote COVID-safe behaviors in high foot traffic areas.  
 
Fee and Tax Waivers for Closed Businesses: San Francisco is continuing its support for 
businesses that have been unable to open due to COVID, and will be providing an additional fee 
and tax waiver for businesses that remain closed -- including entertainment, arts, and nightlife 
venues.   
 
Defer Impact Fee Collection: In addition to deferring fee collection from businesses, the City 
will defer collection of impact fees on development projects to help promote housing 
construction in San Francisco. This will help advance the City’s goals of creating more housing 
and making San Francisco a more affordable place to live, while also promoting local job 
creation. 
 
Grants for Cultural Districts: The Cultural Districts Community Building and Impact program 
will award $265,000 to each legislatively approved Cultural District working to preserve, 
strengthen, and promote their cultural communities. The funds will primarily be utilized to 
celebrate culture, support community resilience in light of COVID-19, provide direct resources, 
and stabilize the identity of the District and its ability to generate a vibrant economy. 
 
Going forward, the City will use the Task Force Recommendations and the priorities for 
Economic Recovery that it established to inform the programs and policies it advances to rebuild 
San Francisco’s economy. San Francisco will continue to work with partners in the business and 
philanthropic community to find ways to support those who continue to struggle through this 
public health and economic crisis. 
 
Economic Recovery Task Force Outreach 
The ERTF was created to guide the City’s efforts to sustain and recover local businesses and 
employment, and mitigate the economic hardships that are affecting the most vulnerable San 
Franciscans. Each of the 100 members on the ERTF served as a connection point to the 
community beyond them, so that constituencies they represented could be connected to the 
City’s response to COVID. In addition to several convenings, the Task received over 1,000 
public surveys and emails in multiple languages from San Franciscans.  
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The Task Force reached over 900 people and facilitated over 40 hours of interviews and 
conversations, including Task Force member policy meetings, public hearings at the Small 
Business Commission, Immigrant Rights Commission, the Commission on the Environment, and 
the Commission on the Status of Women, as well as neighborhood meetings and Cultural 
Districts across the city. The Task Force’s Community Engagement and Listening team also 
conducted targeted stakeholder outreach to tenants from single room occupancy buildings, 
restaurants in Chinatown (an area especially hit hard when COVID-19 initially emerged), the arts 
and entertainment community, immigrant communities, the disability community, and the Black, 
Latino and Filipino communities. 
 
The full Report can be read here: onesanfrancisco.org 
 
 


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
waiving certain taxes and fees for businesses that remain closed. These are just the beginning
of San Francisco’s work to get the City moving toward economic recovery and meeting the
policies and goals set in the ERTF report.
 
“San Francisco is only at the beginning of what we know is going to be a long road to
recovery,” said Mayor London Breed. “Here in this City, I’ve been so proud of how we came
together to combat this virus with a shared commitment to public health and keep one another
safe. In the months and years ahead, it’s going to take that same collective effort to confront
the economic devastation caused by this virus. I want to thank everyone who participated in
the Economic Recovery Task Force, especially our co-chairs, for stepping up when San
Francisco needed them most to come forward with their ideas and their energy. We need to
continue to translate these ideas into action so we can get people back to work and get San
Francisco moving forward.”
 
“We are grateful to all the Economic Recovery Task Force members coming together to offer
ideas, recommendations, and a vision for San Francisco’s future,” said President Norman Yee.
“We recognize the challenges so many of our businesses and residents are facing. I look
forward to working with my Board colleagues, the Mayor, and the Co-Chairs to evaluate and
to develop policies based on this Report to bring relief to the communities that need it most.”
 
“The recommendations released today are a reflection of the immediate needs and aspirations
of our Task Force and community.  I am especially proud that we never lost sight of the need
to rebuild more equitably so that all our communities can prosper,” said Assessor Carmen
Chu, Co-Chair of the Economic Recovery Task Force. “This report is just the beginning, we
must continue to adapt to emerging needs of this global pandemic. Our Task Force’s Shared
Spaces program is an example of what is possible when we work with purpose and when we
work together. Collectively, the Task Force, departments, Mayor’s Office and Board of
Supervisors acted swiftly to remove obstacles and support a program that has since created
opportunities for more than 1,600 businesses across the City. As we move forward, my hope is
that we continue to rise to meet the future with the same passion, creativity, and collective
purpose.”
 
Over the last several months, the ERTF has been instrumental in supporting the City’s
response to COVID, including by creating the City’s Shared Spaces program and helping lead
the creation of the reopening roadmap, which provided a timeline and guidance for reopening
San Francisco’s economy. The Shared Spaces program allows neighborhood businesses to
share a portion of the public right-of-way, such as sidewalks, streets, or other nearby public or
private spaces for dining and retail activity, and the City has issued over 1,600 Shared Spaces
permits to date. 
 
Policy Recommendations
The ERTF Report policy recommendations include actions that are both short-term and
longer-term. The City has already implemented some of the recommendations such as the
Shared Spaces program, business tax deferrals, increased testing capability across the City,
and expanded sick leave programs. The recommendations focus on the following areas of
need:
 



Local Economic Stimulus - explore policies and investments that encourage economic
development and activity in San Francisco, such as funding public infrastructure
projects, streamlining permitting processes, advocacy for state and federal resources,
and more 
Job Connections - facilitate and improve connection to jobs and explore programs that
hire local workers
Promote Safe Reopening - provide clear and accessible information to businesses and
workers on reopening requirements and provide tools and strategies to keep workers,
customers, and residents safe 
Preserve Operations and Lessen Regulatory Burdens - create flexibility for
businesses to operate and consider reducing or eliminating regulatory burdens 
Pursue Economic Justice - narrow the wealth gap and bridge the digital divide for low-
income residents and communities of color
Invest in Housing - incentivize the construction of affordable housing, an immediate
and long-term need 
Meet the Basic Needs of the Vulnerable - ensure San Franciscans have access to food,
shelter, mental health, and other services 
Imagine and Build Stronger Neighborhoods - activate and draw upon San Francisco’s
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
and community members to chart the roadmap for restoring San Francisco’s economic
strength. We will return from this pandemic like we rebuilt after the earthquakes and like we
endured through the AIDS crisis. I am grateful to all the Task Force members for the
contributions they made. Their work will guide us on our journey ahead.”
 
“The entire business community thanks Mayor London Breed and President Norman Yee for
pulling together this diverse group of stakeholders to shape and solve the challenges COVID-
19 has brought to San Francisco,” said Rodney Fong, President and CEO, San Francisco
Chamber of Commerce. “We have a long road to recovery ahead of us, but if we are able to
come together as San Franciscans, I’m confident that we will rebuild San Francisco as a better
and more equitable city.”
 
“The ERTF has been a productive and important step in what will continue to be a campaign
toward a just and equitable recovery,” said Rudy Gonzalez, Executive Director of the San
Francisco Labor Council. “I’m excited to see SF lead the way in developing high road
workforce training and career opportunities especially for our hardest hit communities.”
 
Immediate Actions
The Mayor will initiate several immediate actions informed by the ERTF report today and
aligned with the areas of need identified in the policy recommendations. These are just the
first in a series of actions that will be forthcoming to support San Francisco’s economic
recovery.
 
Extending Shared Spaces: Building off of the early successes of the Shared Spaces program,
the City will work to make elements of the program permanent. The existing Shared Spaces
program will continue throughout the duration of the local emergency in San Francisco, which

https://www.onesanfrancisco.org/covid-19-recovery


remains in effect, and the new effort will incorporate lessons learned and ensure that the
program’s benefits to businesses and the community continue throughout San Francisco’s
long-term recovery and beyond.
 
Economic Support for Small Business Reopenings: The City will provide $1.6 million in
grants and design services to support neighborhood businesses that need to purchase furniture
and fixtures and reconfigure space in order to meet health requirements for operating. This
funding will come by re-purposing grant funding from the SF Shines program, which normally
gives grants to businesses for facade improvements. Additionally, the City will provide
$200,000 for businesses that need legal support and assistance negotiating their leases.
 
Basic Income Pilot for Artists: San Francisco is directing nearly $6 million in funding for
artists, teaching artists, arts organizations, and cultural workers, including a new universal
basic income pilot program for San Francisco artists. The UBI program will provide up to 130
artists with $1,000 a month for at least six months starting early next year. The Arts
Commission will also provide arts organizations with funding to reopen safely and will fund
the creation of an online Arts Hub, which will serve as a one-stop-shop for artists and
organizations looking for financial assistance, professional networking, and employment
opportunities. Next week, the Arts Commission will open four other grant programs for artists,
arts organizations, and cultural facilities. The Office of Economic and Workforce
Development will make $265,000 available to fund artists to paint murals with a public health
theme on boarded up businesses and deploy performance artists to promote COVID-safe
behaviors in high foot traffic areas. 
 
Fee and Tax Waivers for Closed Businesses: San Francisco is continuing its support for
businesses that have been unable to open due to COVID, and will be providing an additional
fee and tax waiver for businesses that remain closed -- including entertainment, arts, and
nightlife venues.  
 
Defer Impact Fee Collection: In addition to deferring fee collection from businesses, the City
will defer collection of impact fees on development projects to help promote housing
construction in San Francisco. This will help advance the City’s goals of creating more
housing and making San Francisco a more affordable place to live, while also promoting local
job creation.
 
Grants for Cultural Districts: The Cultural Districts Community Building and Impact
program will award $265,000 to each legislatively approved Cultural District working to
preserve, strengthen, and promote their cultural communities. The funds will primarily be
utilized to celebrate culture, support community resilience in light of COVID-19, provide
direct resources, and stabilize the identity of the District and its ability to generate a vibrant
economy.
 
Going forward, the City will use the Task Force Recommendations and the priorities for
Economic Recovery that it established to inform the programs and policies it advances to
rebuild San Francisco’s economy. San Francisco will continue to work with partners in the
business and philanthropic community to find ways to support those who continue to struggle
through this public health and economic crisis.
 
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
Business Commission, Immigrant Rights Commission, the Commission on the Environment,
and the Commission on the Status of Women, as well as neighborhood meetings and Cultural
Districts across the city. The Task Force’s Community Engagement and Listening team also
conducted targeted stakeholder outreach to tenants from single room occupancy buildings,
restaurants in Chinatown (an area especially hit hard when COVID-19 initially emerged), the
arts and entertainment community, immigrant communities, the disability community, and the
Black, Latino and Filipino communities.
 
The full Report can be read here: onesanfrancisco.org
 
 

###
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services here. 
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October 7, 2020


Rich Hillis, Director
San Francisco Planning Department
49 South Van Ness Ave, Suite 1400
San Francisco, CA 94103


Re: 944 Chestnut Street, San Francisco


Dear Mr. Hillis,


I have lived in San Francisco for 41 years and currently reside at 935 Chestnut Street, thus, I am
in very close proximity to the renovation and new construction at 944 Chestnut Street.


I have been in regular contact with NOA Design +Construction and have had cordial and
professional discussions with Michael Shankman and Max Mueller. They have indicated more
than once that they are simply following the permit granted by the Planning Department in 2014
and revised in 2018. We have no issues with NOA Design +Construction or the new owners
who we expect are very nice people.


However, I am puzzled as to why the Planning Department, which includes the Historic
Preservation Commission, approved the designs submitted by the earlier architect. I believe that
944 Chestnut Street is a 1863 historic building and it is very surprising to me that the Planning
Department agreed to take down a very unsightly, non-historic, 1950's add-on, but then granted
a permit to allow for anon-historic add-on where the new roof of the add-on exceeds the entire
slope of the original roof, except for the very top pinnacle of the original roof. I cannot
understand the justification for the Planning Department to allow this very historic house in San
Francisco to be modified to this significant degree.


Further, neither my wife nor I, as well as Nona Russell of 960 Chestnut Street, ever received a
30-day, 311 notice from the Planning Department. We understand that it is the sole
responsibility of the Planning Department to make sure that 311 notices are received by all the
relevant neighbors. I believe that 311 notices are generally sent by certified mail (if they are not,
they should be), and if this is the case, perhaps you can confirm that indeed Ms. Russell and we
actually received the 311 notice which we claim we did not. We, along with Ms. Russell, never
received any plans or updates since the neighborhood meeting which took place in 2014. The
meeting was sparsely attended and the plans were so outlandish that nothing was accomplished
and we received no notifications or any information from the Planning Department since the
2014 meeting and now the construction is well on its way to completion.


Sincerely,
. ~


Anton Brueh
935 Chestnut St.
San Francisco, CA 94109


cc: London Breed Catherine Stefani Aaron Jon Hyland
Lydia So Jonathan Pearlman Richard S.E. Johns
Chris Foley Kate Black Diane Matsuda
NOA Design +Construction Nona Russell






























